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Australian Government |
Tndigenous Land Corporation

Board in Confidence
BOARD DECISION

Decision No 4422

BOARD MEETING Nos 191
MEETING DATE: 26 August 2015

FOR: Certification of the 2014/15 Annual Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INDIGENOUS LAND CORPORATION:

lon 46 of the Public Governance, Performuonce,

1. Notes that it Is responsible under Sect
year of an

Accountability Act 2013 {PGPA Act)for the preparation and presentation each
- Annual Report.
Resolves that the 2014/15 Annual Report complies with the requirements of Section 46

of the PGPA Act and assoclated rules and Includes the ILC's Report of Operations and
audited consolidated financial statements for the reporting perlod, subject to:

Directors providing any changes required to the content of the draft report to the

Chief Executive Officer by 1 September 2015
b) Receipt of a cettification from the Departmen
the draft report satisties annual reporting compliance requirements.

a)
¢ of Prime Minlster and Cablnet that

Authorises the Chalr to sign the letter of transmission to the Minister for the ILC

2014715 Annual Report and cause the report io e printed and tabled according fo
annual repott deadlines.

Date: 26.08.15

SIGNED, Dawn Casey, Chairperson
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Petty, Barry

From: McFadyen, Denise

Sent:, Tuesday, 12 January 2016 10:22 AM
To: Kemble, Alice

Subject: RE: sorry, will get off soon.

[ am just doing the one on AR foreword? There have been developments ~ conversation with Leo. Apparently the
Minister thinks the letter is inadequate, and wants the Board to reflect on and repudiate the inaccuracy in the report

—~ this one:

the ILC’s requests for an investigation, despite many
representations to Minister Scullion, fo the Minister

for Finance, the Hon Matthias Cormann MP (in his

role as regulator of public-sector authorities) and to

the then Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott MP.

In correspondence dated December 2014, Minister

Cormarmn indicated he agreed to an inquiry, but

referred the matter to Minister Scullion. Minister Scullion refused to initiate an inguiry on the basis
that the matter had already been investipated.

Challenged to provide ‘new information’, the ILC

once again examined all the records in its possession

and in May 2015 wrote to the Prime Minister adding

to the extensive informnation already supplied to

the Government. The letter to the Prime Minister

identified a range of relevant documents and

detailed five particularly concerning features of the

{ransaction process. No substantive response had

been received at the time of preparing this report.

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2016 10:45 AM
To: McFadyen, Denise '
Subject: RE: sorry, will get off soon.

Senate estimates briefs would be lovely. © Am off the phone now!

From: McFadyen, Denise

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2016 10:34 AM
To: Kemble, Alice

Subject: RE: sorry, will get off soon.

lust wanted to know if you want me to do anything in particular — otherwise will get on with my other tasks as
assigned.

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2016 10:32 AM
To: McFadyen, Denise

Subject: sorry, will get off soon.

Gah...
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Petty, Barry

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2016 1:20 PM
To: Bator, Leo

Subject: FW: Chair's forward

Leo

We will have draft briefs to you along these lines and will include responses to the guestions Kate has

raised in defensive senate estimate hriefs,

Let me know if you would like anything different.

Alice

From: Gumley, Kate

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2016 12:30 PM
To: Nguyen, Tri; Bator, Leo

Cc: Kemble, Alice

Subject: RE: Chair's forward

Hi Leo

atlon with you on varying the forward of the annual report. | understand
below in the forward. |expect as Tri has flagged that we will attract
stimates. Given the definitive support from

ady publicly avallable) this deletion may attract
he Chair and ILC we should seek a formal letter

Tri has just called and discussed his convers
Minister Scullion is concerned about the paras
scrutiny about the delay and any deletions to the annual report at E
Senator Cormann for the review expressed in his letter (which is alre
particular interest. [suggest given the serious reputational risks for t

from the Minister asking for his changes.

pers at the 18 Jan Board mtg. [ suggest the papers are limited to one
ndations and in the interest of all options being presented to them: ‘
hem 3 optlons to choose from and recommending option (a}, {a) retain
the current forward with the offending sentence deleted, with the current stronger accompanying letter to
position the new Board and {b} a new forward written by the current Chair with a letter to the Government
committing to collaborate with them {c) retaining the current forward in full and attaching the stronger

letter from the Chair
2. A paper onthe SLAB, recommending Direct

I suggest we provide the Board with 3 new pa
specific issue to avoid confusion on recomme
1. A paper on the Annual Report giving t

ors note the matters not covered in the current approach {detail
attached) being developed with Government and ceasing support for the SLAB, writing to the Greens,
opposition and Government and Indigenous stakeholders we have previously corresponded with. This will
set out the logic and new approach and be a good warm up for the stakeholder discussions.

3. A paper recommending the Board cease the call for a public ingulry into the ARR purchase. This should
attach the material provided to the Prime Minister and ask directors to consider the material in exercising
their directors’ duties in determining if there is insufficlent basis for an inquiry by Government.

| have set out some possible questions helow and we will need to prepare some defensive briefings.

Likely questioning might be:
1. Why were there delays inthe publication of the report
2. When did the ILC provide the report 1o government and when was it reteased by the Minister

3. Were thete any changes ta the report? Who asked these changes be made? Did the Minister, his office or

department ask for changes to he made?
4. What negotiations were there on the annua

conducted these?

| report with the Minister, his office or the department? Who

1




5. s there written correspandence or emails relating to the requested changes? .
6. Wasa Board paper put to the Board to approve the changes? Did the current Board discuss the changes?

Did they approve them as recommended to them or did they vary these? How many directors voted in

support of this action? L
7. s it good governance to vary an annual report of an outgoing chalr? Has this ptewously happened to an

repor{?
8. Doss the ILC's legislation require the Minister to approve the Annual report? Was thls a formal direction

from the Minister? Can this be tabled? _ o
9. How can the ILC be regarded as independent of Government when it is prepared to vary core organisational

documents? 5
10. Has the Board considered thetr support for the SLAB? What was the recommendation put to the Board?

How many directors voted to not proceed with support for the SLAB?
11. Has the Board considered their support for the call for an inquiry? What were the recommendations put to

the Board? How many directors voted to not proceed with support for the mqugry?

Regards

Kate Gumiley
Executive Director, Strategy
Indigenous Land Corporation

Redacted s 47F

W www.ilc.qov.au

Redacted s 42 |




Redacted s 42
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&
o Office of %O C14/3578
. ngf' the CEO %
. ‘ er )
Dr Dawn Casey, PSM, FAHA . g 19 DEE 20t g
|

Chair, Indigenous Land Cotporation
Office of the Chairperson

PO Box 586

Curtin ACT 2605

Dear Dr Casey

Tetter, received 4 November 20 14, asking that T consider initiating

proceedings for a declaration of contravention under clause 6 of Schedule 2 to the

Commormwealth Authorities and Companies Aot 1997 (CAC Act), You sllege that 4
former officers of the Indigenous Land Cotporation. (ILC) have breached theit duty of care
and diligence under section 22(1) of the CAC Act relating to the purchase of the Ayots
Rock Resort (ARR). You have also advised that TLC believes that it has a civil cause of
action against these formen officers, on. which you have suspended further action pending

my response,

I am responding to your

T am appreciative of the detailed letier ad attachments that you sent. However, fam
e futther nvestigation befote I can reach

 advised that the allegations you have made requir
{3 determination whether there are sufficient grouads for proceedings that would lead to a
declaration of conttavention against the former officers of IL.C under the CAC Act.

Tn reading the material you provided, it appears that investigations will also need to
consider whether there have been breaches of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Aet 2005 (ATSI Act), under which the purchase of ARR was authotised, as well as
possible breaches of both etvil and criminal law.

Given that these allegations are broader than just the possible CAC Act breaches, 1 think it
is important for the investigation to have a wider lool at the purchase of ARR and related
actions by former officers of the ILC and other parties favolved. Suchan investigation
would pursue all the allegations made, rather than the limited focus of CAC Act breaches
by the 4 officers named in your letter, 1 also think it is important that the entire facts of
the purchase and related actions are investigated by the Government itself,

Accordingly, T have written to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the Hon Nigel
Scullion, on {his matter, Asthe pottfolio Minster responsible for ILC and also for the
ATSI Act, he is more appropristely placed fo conduct any investigation of the broader
issues through his department. He may of course choose to engage entities such as the
Australian Government Solicitor to assist or to request that the Auditor-General conduct a

Parliament House, Catberra ACT 2600 Telephons! (02) 6277 7400 ~ Facsimile: {02) 6273 4110




performanée audit which might further inform the need or otherwise for actions at law.
On conclusion of any investigation, T have asked Minister Seullion to provide me with any

further evidence relevant to the CAC Act issues you have raised.

As you are aware, I have been following the performance of ARR in the quarterly repotts
provided by you, I thank you for your continmed proviston of that information and Jook -

. forwatd to the outcome of the upcoming investigatioti.

Copies of this Jetter have been given to the Prime Ministet, the Attorney-General and the
Partiamentary Sectetaty to the Prime Minister,

Minister for Finance

é % December 2014
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Petty, Barry

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

McFadyen, Denise
Tuesday, 12 January 2016 3:51 PM

- Kemble, Alice

Lowe, Sarah
Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft.docx
Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft.docx

First draft — haven’t drafted Attachment B — have to fly.







e ' Australian Government

“ Indigenous Land Corperation

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197 —18 lanuary 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 201415

Purpose

To séek the Board’s reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 201415 prior to its
tabling.

Recommendation

That the Board:

« Considers three options arising from the Minister for Indigenous Affair’s request

to amend the ILC Annual Report 2014~15
« If option 3 is chosen, considers and approves the new Chairperson’s report ot

Attachment B,

Backgound

The ILC is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled in Parliament. The
 report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016 was transmitted to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been

subject to ministerial review prior to tabling.

Issues

Chalrperson on xx January 2016 lstatlng that it is his. f[rm belief that tl‘:_f_e_r_e_z are R

inaccuracies in Br Casey’s overarching report on the performance of the ILC which
forms a ‘foreword’ to the draft ILC Annual Repori 2014-15. He will wrshhold
permission to table the report while these ‘inaccuracies’ stand.

Given this advice, the Board may wish to consider three options:

1. Toinform the Minister that the Board supports the report as originally

transmitted .
2. To remove those parts of the former Chairperson’s report that the Minister

qonsiders inaccurate—refer Attachment A

Fﬂmment 1] Th:slener basn 't been
T

‘received bot it has been sought.” "

)




3. Toremove the réport by the former Chairperson, and retransmit the report
with a ‘foreword’ by the current Chairperson.

The consequences of choosing option 1 are likely to include the ILC's not having an
annual report tabled for the 2014~15 year.

Option 2 may be considered inappropriate given the Chairperson’s narrative as it
stands was signed.by Dr Casey. The ILC is committed to best practice governance and
high ethical standards. Documents in the [LC’s possession indicate that the former
Chairperson’s account of matters currently in contention with the Minister is accurate.

See Attachment A.

Option 3 is availabie to the Board, as the current Board inherited the responsibilities of
the former Board and has ownership of the report which remains subject to pre-
tabling processes. Choosing this option would expedite tabling of the report. Anew
Chairperson’s report, over the signature of current Chairperson, has been drafted for
the Board’s conslderation. See Attachment B. ‘

Recommendation

That the Board:

+ » Considers three options arising the Minister for Indigenous Affair’s request to

amend the ILC Annual Report 2014-15
* If option 3 is chosen, considers and approves the new Chairperson’s report at

Attachment B.

[;epared by: Approved by:
' Leo Bator
lanuary 2016 A/g Chief Executive Officer
In preparing this recommendation, | January 2016
_declare I have no confiict of interest In approving this recommendation, |
declare I have no conflict of interest




Attachment A

Minister’s concerns In relation to the accuracy of events described in the former
Chairperson’s report

The Minister’s concerns relate to a particular passage in the report of the former
Chairperson relating to the then ILC Board’s call for an independent public inquiry into

the purchase of Ayers Rock Resort (ARR):

The Australian Government has continued to refuse the ILC's requests for an
investigation, despite many representations to Minister Scullion, to the Minister for
Einance, the Hon Matthias Cormann MP {in his role as regulator of public-sector
authorities) and to the Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott MP. In correspondence
dated December 2014, Minister Cormann indicated he agreed to an inquiry, but
referred the matter to Minister Sculfion. Minister Scullion refused to inftiate an inquiry
on the basis that the matter had already been investigated. Challenged to provide
‘new Information’, the ILC once again examined all the records in its possession and in
May 2015 wrote to the Prime Minister adding to the extensive information already
supplied to the Government. The letter to the Prime Minister identifled a range of
relevant documents and detailed five particularly concerning features of the
transaction process. No substantive response had been recetved at the time of

preparing this report.

The particular sequence of events to be noted is set out below, It must be emphasised
that the letters cited below form part of a very extensive correspondence between the
ILC and members of the Australian Government elected in September 2013 In relation
to the ILC Board’s call for an independent public inquiry into the purchase of Ayers

Rock Resort.

29 October 2014: The ILC Chairperson wrote to the Minister for Finance asking himto
exercise his powers under Clause 6, Schedule 2 of the Commonweualth Authorities and
Companies Act 1997 (CAC Act} to seek a declaration of contravention of section 22(1)
of the CAC Act, in relation to the acts of certain former Directors and officers of the
ILC. The ILC also notified the Finance Minister that it was considering legal action

against these individuals.

On the same date the ILC Chairperson wrote to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs
stating that the ILC considered it had grounds for action against former
Directors/officers. ‘

19 December 2014: The Minister for Finance replied to the Chairperson. His letter
stated: ' '

In reading the material you provided, it appears that investigations will also need to
consider whether there have been breaches of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait




Isfander Act 2005 (ATSI Act), under which the purchase of ARR was authorised, as well
as possible breaches of both civit and criminal law.

Given that these allegations are broader than just the possible CAC Act breaches, !
think it is important for the investigation to have a wider [cok at the purchase of ARR
and related actlons by former officers of the ILC and ather parties involved. Such an
investigation would pursue all the allegations made, rather than the limited focus of
CAC Act breaches by the 4 officers named in your letter. | also think it is important that
the entire facts of the purchase and related actions are investigated by the
Government itself.

Minister Cormann further stated that he was referring the conduct of any investigation
1o the Minister for Indigenous Affairs. :

12 January 2015 and 3 February 2015: The ILC Chairperson wrote to Minister Cormann
questioning the appropriateness of referring the matter to Minister Scullion and asking
that carriage of any investigation remain with Minister Cormann and his department,

17 February 2015: Minister Scuilion wrote in response to the letter addressed to him
on 29 Cctober 2014, .

I note that your letter of 29 October 2014 does not ralse any new facts, further to
those Investigated by previous reviews of the ARR purchase. It is unclear to me
whether the Board is in possession of further relevant information that has not bean
to date disclosed to Government ... | would ask that you provide to me as soon as
possible any additional information not provided that would support the basis of any
legal action the ILC proposed to take ...

23 February 2015: Senator Cormann wrote to the ILC Chairperson:

I'inform you that, after a review by the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the
Hon Nigel Scullion, I consider that there is insufficient evidence to support me making
an application under Clause 6 of Schedule 2 of the Commonwealth Authorfties and
Companies Act 1997 (CAC Act} for breaches related to the purchase of Ayers Rock
Resort ... There have already been severai independent reviews, by various parties,
into the purchase of ARR. None of these have produced evidence that support
breaches of the CAC Act by the former ILC Board.

27 May 2015: The ILC Chairperson wrote to then Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott
MP, providing additional information following a ‘detailed review of our previous
correspondence and briefings to Ministers on this matter against the extensive and
complex records in our possessior’. This letter noted Minister Scullion’s request in his
letter of 17 February 2015.

27 July 2015: Richard Eccles, Deputy Secretary of the Department of the Prime
Minister and Cabinet wrote to the ILC Chairperson on behalf of the Prime Minister,
saying the ‘issues you raised are being considered’.
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Petty, Barry

From: Lowe, Sarah

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2016 4:31 PM

To: Kemble, Alice

Subject: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2).docx
Aftachments: Board paper - Gonsideration of AR - Draft (2).docx

Only a couple of minor changes, otherwise all good|







Wi Australian Government

b Indigenous Land Corporation

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONS!DERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Purpose

To seek the Board’s reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 2014-15 prior to its
tabling.

Recaommendation

That the Board:
Conslders three options arising from the Minister for In digenous Affalr's request

to amend the ILC Annual Report 2014-15
» Ifoption 3 Is chosen, considers and approves the new Chalrperson’s report at

Attachment B.

Backgound

The ILC is required to submit an annual repori: and have It tabled In Parliament. The
report for the perlod 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016 was transmitied to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chalrperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been

subject to ministerlal review prior to tabling,

Issues

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, has
advised the acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr Bator that the Senator will not agree to
table the draft Annual Report 201415 in Its current form, believing there are
inaccuracies In Dr Casey’s overarching report on the performance of the ILC which
forms a ‘foreword”. In particular the Minister's Office have raised concern with
references to the Government's position on the Independent investigation into the

purchase of the Ayres Rock Resort, namely,

The Australian Government has continued to refuse the {LC’s requests for an
investigation, desplte many represer tations to Minister Sculfion, to the Minister
for Finance, the Hon Matthias Cormann MP {in his role as regulator of public-
sector authorities) and to the Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott MP. In

d

correspoqg;gggg_gated December 2014, Minister Cormann indicated he agree Y e




to an inquiry, but referred the matter to Minister Sculfion., Minister Scullion
refused to [nftiate an inguiry on the basis that the matter had already been
investigated. Chailenged to provide ‘new information’, the IEC onice ogaln
examined all the records in fts possession and in May 2015 wrote to the Prime
Minister adding to the extensive information already supplied to the
Government, The letter to the Prime Minister enclosed all relevant decuments
and detafled flve particularly concerning features of the transaction process, No
response had s been recelved at the time of preparing this report.

IWhilst there are docutnents In the ILC's possession that indjcate that the former

Chairperson’s account of matters currently In contention with-the Minister is accurate,[ ??Tment [ATK1]: We could delete
" 4 " T this

the Board may wish to consider the following optlons to expedite the tabling of the .ﬂ:’tiﬂm want i strengthaned, wa have

Annual Report: an attachment ready that includes the

. refevant informatlon.

1. Retain the current foreword of the former Chairperson and provide a letter to
the Minister stating the current Chairperson’s position on the independent
investigation of the purchase of the ARR and a commitment to work in
collaboratjvelye and_in cooperation with the Government to achieve positive
.-{ Comment [AJK2]: Do we need to say

outcomes for Indigenous Australians — a draft letter Is at Attachment A’[ tont [AIK2L: bo we necd tasay.
"""""" something aliott the investigation in to the
e

' 2. Remove those parts of the former Chairperson’s report that the Minister
_ f considers inaccurate, In particular reference to the conterns-andrequests for an

investigation and the position of the Government on the purchase of the Ayres
Rock Resort,

3. Replace the report by the former Chalrperson, and retransmit the report with a
‘fareword’ by the current Chairperson.

Under Option 1, the Minister may continue to refuse to table the Annual Report,

] Option 2 may be considered inappropriate given the Chairperson’s foreword was
signed by Dr Casey and her signature would remain on the aftered document,

Option 2 could be considered more appropriate as the current Board inherited the
responsibilities of the former Board and has-retains ownership of the report
throughout the which-remainssubjestto-pre-tabling processes. A new Chalrperson’s
report, overthe-sighatureofto be signed by the current Chairperson, has been drafied
for the Board’s consideration. See Attachment B,

Recammendation

That the Board:
« Considers the optlons arislng_from the Office of the Minister for indlgenous Affalr’s’
request to amend the ILC Annual Report 201415




« [f optlon 2 Is chosen, considers and approves the new Chalrperson’s report at
Attachment B.

Prepared by:

January 2016

In preparing this recommendation, 1
declare | have no conflict of inferest

Approved by:

Leo Bator

A/g Chief Executive Officer
January 2016

In approving this recommendation, |

| declare { have no conflict of interest




Attachment A

January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scuilion
Minister for Indigenous Affairs
Parliament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Pear Minister

I refer to the Indigenous Land Corporation (ILC) Annual Report covering the period
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 in which the outgolng Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey,
puts certain matters on the record, and urges certain actions on incoming Directors

and myself as her successor,

The new ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting in February 2016 for an
in-depth discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be
setting new directions in an environment where demands on ILC services are
increasing, the Indigencus population is growing and an agricultural boom is on our

dootstep,

In 2016 | am also embarking on a schedule of visits to prominent Indlgenous leaders to
discuss their aspirations for their communities and how both the ILC and indigenous
Business Australia (IBA) can assist, | will brief you on the outcomes of these meetings;
‘however, a number of broad directions and required tasks are already clear.

First and foremost, | want to put on the record the [LC Board's strong commitment to
collaboration with the Australian Governmaent and to meeting all requirements of our
overarching legislation, the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act
2013, We will be working with the Government to achieve the [LC’s legislative purpose
and providing support {(within our legistative remit) to policy priorities of the
Government, As Directors we recognlise the benefits, to the ILC and the Indigenous
people it serves, of a ¢lose, cooperative and productive relationship with the
Governiment, characterised by open communication. | am convinced the provisions of
the current Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 are adequats In defining the

ILC's purpose and governance.

Second, ] will be initiating a bottom-up review of the ILC's operations, by independent
consuftants, to inform our future processes and strategies, The review will also




conslder significant past decisions and thelr consequences, | will be reporting the
outcome of this review to Parfiament in the ILC Annual Report 2015-16.

As concurrent Chair of IBA, [ will be working to forge stronger links between (BA and
the ILC and to build and leverage the agencies’ combined asset base for the benefit of

Indlgenous Australians and of Australia as a whole.

As you know, an immediate challenge facing the ILCIs refinancing, In the first half of
this year, a substantial part of the debt Incurred through the {LC’s purchase of Ayers
Rock Resort. We look forward to working with you and your department to develop
for Government consideration an alternative refinancing option that we hope will
minimise the IL.C's Interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources forits
core functions and to support the outstanding Indigenous job-creation outcomes at
the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenous connections, | do not
helleve that the orlginal transaction needs to be investigated any further than it

already has been.

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Land Account are generally inadequate to meet the demands being made on the
ILC. Indeed, the legislated requitement to provide a minimum level of annual funding
to the ILC could see the Land Account’s capital balance decrease based on cutrent
returns from the allowable investments of the Land Account. Meanwhile, the
Indigenous population is growing at an estimated 2.3 per cent per annum, and the
indigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40 per cent of the Australian land
mass according to the December 2015 report to COAG on Indigenous fand
administration and use.  look forward to discussing with you and the Minister for
Finance a strategic approach to achieving a higher rate of return from the Land

Account, benchmarked to the Future Fund,

Increases in revenue to the ILC, both from the Land Account and from our three
commerclal subsidiaties, are essential given the Board's desire to play a greater role in
supporting the Government's [ndigenous and broader policy agendas. The ILC already
dellvers strongly on the Government's Closing the Gap priority of ‘geiting adults into
worl’; it is a major provider of training-to-employment programs, especially In remote
Australta, and around 30 per cent of total ILC Group staff are Indigenous people.

The Governiment is prioritising the development of northern Australla where iLc
subsidiary National indigenous Pastoral Enterprises {NIPE) operates an extensive cattle -
busfness across 13 properties. The White Paper on Developing Northern Australia
highlights the opportunities avallable to such agribusinesses, glven northern Australia’s
proximity to growing Asian markets. Through Its commitment ta expand NIPE, the ILC
Is seeking to bulld the Indigenous presence in the northern cattle industry giving
Indigenous interasts greater commercial strength and influence.

The Whita Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on indigenous
1and is essential to northern development, in light of the extent of Indigenous




ownership across a compiex array of land titles. The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporatlon’s considerable expertise in fostering economic development on
Indigenous-held land, recognising that economic benefits are most effectively realised
when the other benefits specified in our leglslation—environmental, social and
cultural—are also realised. As the ILC has demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote
Australia are well placed to earn Income from unconventional and innovatlve sources,
including ecosystem services, carbon farming and water management.

As chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to Increase the [LC's impact,
influence, effectiveness and reach. | am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous
Australians. | befieve the two agencles | chair need to embrace a business model based
on growth, commercial sustainability and collaboration across the Australian
community {including mobilising greater private-sector interest and fnvestment),

The new ILC will have a future focus; It will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across its varlous activities, We will learn from
the past and move on. The ILC was established to benefit Indigenous Australtans and
that Is what | will ask my fellow Board members to focus on because Indigenous
people across Australia depend on what we do, and how welt we do it. The new Board
marks a new era for the ILC. 1 look forward to working with you over the coming years.

Yours sincerely
Eddie Fry
Chair




AttachmentB

Suggested Foreword — Chair_ Mr Eddle Fry
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Petty, Barry

From:

Sent:

To;

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi Kate

Kemble, Alice

Tuesday, 12 January 2016 4:33 PM

Gumiley, Kate

Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) {2) (2).docx
Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) {2).docx

Attached is the draft paper on the Annual Report for your consideration.

Will print out and take home if you want to talk through changes too.

A







Wi Australian Government

" Indigenous Land Corporation

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 201415

Purpose

To seek the Board’s reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 201415 prior to lts
tabling. ‘

Recommendation
That the Board:
Considers three aptions vrising from the Minlster for Indigenous Affalr’s request

to amend the ILC Annual Report 2014-15
« If option 3 Is chosen, considers and approves the new Chairperson’s reportk at

Attachment B,

*

Backgound

The ILC is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled in Parflament, The
report for the period 1 July 2014 to 20 June 2016 was transmitted to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chalrperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been

subject to ministerial review prior to tabling.

issues

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, has
advised the acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr Bator that the Senator will not agree to
table the draft Annual Report 2014-15 In its current form, helleving there are
inaccuracies In Dr Casey's overarching report on the performance of the [LC which
fotms a Toreword’. In particular the Minister's Office have raised concern with
references to the Government’s position on the independent Investigation into the

purchase of the Ayres Rock Resort, namely,

The Australian Government hus continued to refuse the IL.C's requests foran
investigation, despite many representa tions to Minister Scullion, to the Minister
for Finance, the Hon Matthias Cormann MP {in his role as regulator of public-
secior authorities} and to the Prime Ministet, the Hon Tony Abbott MP. In
correspondence dated December 2014, Minister Cormann Indicated he agreed




to an inquiry, but referred the matter to Minister Scullion. Minister Scullion
refused to initiate an ingtiry on the basls that the matter had already been
Investigated. Challenged to provide ‘new information’, the ILC once again
examined alf the records in its possession and in May 2015 wrote to the Prime
Minister adding to the extensive information already supplied to the
Government. The letter to the Prime Minister enclosed all relevant documents
and detailed five particularly concerning features of the transaction process. No
response had s been recelved at the time of preparing this report.

L LT

Chalrpersonis secount-of mattersicirrently In‘contentiopiwith,the. Minister s accurate, |
the Board may wish to conslder the following optlons to expedite the tabling of the
Annual Report! '

£ify n t_gprengflhened, wa have
ap atiachmedk ready that Inchudes the
relevantinformailon, -~

1. Retain the current foreword of the former Chatrperson and provide a letier to
the Minister stating the current Chairperson’s position on the independent
Investigation of the purchase of the ARR and a commitment to work
collahoratively and In cooperation with the Government to achieve positive
outcomes for Indigenous Australians — a draft letter is at Attachment & -—T Cor

! A.\'li(?.], Howe need to say
i atfon I to the

2. Remove those parts of the former Chalrperson’s repart that the Minister
considers inaccurate, in particular reference to the requests for an Investigation
and the position of the Government on the purchase of the Ayres Rock Resort.

3. Replace the report by the former Chairperson, and retransmit the report with a
‘foreword’ by the current Chairperson.

Under Option 1, the Minister may confinue to refuse to table the Annual Report,

Option 2 may he considered inappropriate given the Chairperson’s foreword was
sighed by Dr Casey and her signatura would remain on the altered document.

Option 2 could be considered more appropriate as the current Board Inherited the
responsibilities of the former Board and retains ownership of the report throughout
the pre-tabling processes. A new Chairperson’s report, to be signed by the current
Chairperson, has been drafted for the Board’s consideration. See Attachment B,

Recommendation

That the Board:
+ Considers the options arlsing from the Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs’

request to amend the ILC Annual Report 201415
+ Ifoption 2 is chosen, considers and approves the new Chairperson’s report at

Attachment B.




Prepared by:

January 2016

In preparing this recommendation, |
declore 1 have no conflict of interest

Approved hy!

teo Bator

A/g Chief Executive Offlcer
January 2016

In approving this recommendation, 1

declare | have no conflict of interest




Attachment A

" January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for Indigenous Affairs
Parfiament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

| refer to the indigenous Land Corporation {ILC) Annual Report covering the period
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 in which the outgoing Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casay,
puts certain matters on the record, and urges certain actions on incoming Directors

and myself as her successor,

The new ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting in February 2016 for an
In-depth discussion of our strategic priorities and vislon for the future; we will be
setting new directions in an environment where demands on ILC services are
increasing, the Indigenous population is growing and an agricultural boom is on our

doorstep. :

In 2016 | am aiso embarlking on a schedule of visits to prominent Indigenous leaders to
discuss their aspirations for thelr comimunities and how both the ILC and Indigenous
Business Australia {IBA) can assist. | will brief you on the outcomes of these meetings;
however, a number of broad diréctions and required tasks are already clear,

First and foremost, | want to put on the record the ILC Board's strong commitment to
collaboration with the Australian Government and to meeting all requirements of our
overarching legistation, the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act
2013, We will be working with the Government to achieve the ILC's legistative purpose
and providing support {(within our leglslative remit) to policy priorities of the
Government, As Directors we recognise the henefits, to the iLC and the Indigenous
people It serves, of a ¢lose, cooperatlve and productive relationshlp with the
Governmenti, characterised by open communication. | am convinced the pravisions of
the current Aborlgingl and Torres Strait islander Act 2005 are adequate In defining the

ILC's purpose and governance.

Second, | wifl be Initfating a bottom-up review of the IL.C's operatlons, by Independent
consultants, to inform our future processes and strategles. The review will also




consider significant past decisions and their consequences. | will be reporting the
outcome of this review to Parllament in the ILC Annual Report 2015--16.

As concurrent Chalr of 1BA, | will be working to forge stronger links between IBA and
the ILC and to bulld and leverage the agencies' combined asset base for the benefit of

Indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole.

As you know, an immediate challenge facing the iLC s refinancing, in the first half of
this year, a substantlal part of the debt incurred through the ILC's purchase of Ayers
Rock Resort, We look forward to working with you and your department to develop
for Government consideration an alternative refinancing option that we hopa will
minimise the ILC's Interest-payment obligations, so the [LC has more resources for Its
core functions and to support the outstanding indigen ous job-creation outcomes at
the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenaus connections, [ do not
pelieve that the original transaction needs to be investigated any further than it

already has been.

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres
Stralt Land Account are generally inadequate to meet the demands belng made on the
ILC. Indeed, the legislated requirement te provide a minimum lavel of annual funding
to the ILC could see the Land Account’s capital bafance decrease based on current
returns from the allowabla investments of the Land Account. Meanwhile, the
Indigenous population is growing at an estlmated 2.3 per cent per annury, and the
Indigenous estate is expanding—It covers around 40 per cenht of the Australfan land
mass according to the December 2015 report to COAG on tndlgenous land
administration and use. | look forward to discussing with you and the Minister for
Finance a strateglc approach to achieving a higher rate of return from the Land

Account, benchmarked to the Future Fund.

Increases in revenue to the ILC, both from the Land Account and from our three
commercial subsidiarles, are essential given the Board's desire to play a greater role In
supporting the Government's indigenous and broader policy agendas. The ILC already
delivers strongly on the Government’s Closing the Gap priority of ‘getting adults into
work’; It is a major provider of training-to-employment programs, especially in remote
Australia, and around 30 per cent of total ILC Group staff are Indigenous people,

The Government Is prioritising the development of northern Australia where [LC
subsidiary Natfonal Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises (NIPE) operates an extensive cattle
business across 13 properties. The White Paper on Developtng Northern Ausiralia
highlights the opportunities available to such agribusinesses, given northern Australla's
praximity to growing Astan markets. Through its commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC
is seeking to build the Indigenous presence in the northern cattle industry giving
Indigenous interests greater commaercial strength and influence,

The White Paper recognises that achfeving better ecohomic outcomes on indigenous
land is essentlal to northern development, In light of the extent of Indigenous




ownership across a complex array of land titles. The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporation’s considerable expertise in fostering economic development on
Indigenous-held land, recognising that economic henefits are most effectively realised
when the other benefits specified in our legislation—environmental, social and
cultural—are also realised. As the ILC has demonstrated, ndigenous owners in remote
Australia are well placed to earn income from uncenventional and innovative sources,
including ecosystem services, carbon farming and water management.

As chalr of the ILC 1 will worlc as | have with 1BA—to increase the ILC's Impact,
influence, effectiveness and reach. 1 am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous
Australlans. | belleve the two agencies | chair need to embrace a business model based
on growth, commetrcial sustainability and collaboration across the Australian -
community {including mohillsing greater private-sector interest and investment).

The new [LC will have a future focus it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across its varlous activities, We will learn from
the past and move on. The [1.C was established to benefit Indigenous Australians and
that is what | will ask my fellow Board members to focus an because indlgenous
people across Australla depend on what we do, and how well we do it, The new Board
marks a new era for the ILC. 1 look forward to working with you over the coming years.

Yours sincerely
Eddie Fry
Chair




Attachment B

Suggested Foreword ~Chair Mr Eddie Fry
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i Australian Government

“ Indigenous Land Corperation

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF |LC ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Purpose

To seek the Board’s reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 2014~15 prior to its
tabling. .

Recommendation

That the Board:

+  Agrees to one of the options proposed, or an afternative to respond to  arising
request from the Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affair’s to amend the ILC

Annual Report 2014-15

Backgound

The ILC is required to submit an anaual report and have It tabled in Parliament, The
report for the period 1 july 2014 to 30 June 2016 was transmitted to the Minister on
. 21 September 2015 by former Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which Tt has been

subject to inisterial review prior to tabling.

Issues

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, has
advised the |LC’s acting Chief Executlve Officer, Mr Leo Bator, that the Senater
Minister will not agree to table the draft ILC Annual Report 201415 in its current

form, believingthere-are, because the Minister believes there are Inaccuraclesin
Dr Casey’s overarching report on the performance of the [LC which forms a );frji"‘e'\'vo'rd'

—_—

to thie repor{{[This text is at Attachment A. The Minister’s Office would like the maifer ... omme

..... Y
L
1

settled quickly so the report can be tabled ahead of Senate Estlmates on 18 February
2016,

d i is understood that the Minister's concerns centre

y .
on have-raised-concernwith-references to the Government’s position on the-the need
for an independent public Investigation-inquiry into the purchase of the Ayres-Avers
Rock Resort [ARR)-ramely, an inguiry that was strongly advocated by the former ILC

Board;:

ik FATK2: IhE,‘fo.r_éu'[érd :-:Evarq‘
{ if the former chalr/ -




The Australian Government has continued to refuse the LC's requests for an
investigation, despite many representations to Minister Scullion, to the Minister
for Finance, the Hon Muatthias Cormann MP (in his role as requiator of public-
sector authorfties) and to the Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott MP. in
correspondence dated December 2014, Minister Cormann indicated he agreed
to an inquiry, but referred the matter to Minister Scullion. Minister Sculfion
refused to initiate an inquiry on the basis that the matter had already been
investigated. Challenged to provide ‘new informatior’, the ILC once again
examined ail the records In its possession and in May 2615 wrote to the Prime
Minister adding to the extensive Information already supplied to the
Government, The letter to the Prime Minister enclosed all relevant documents
and detalled five particularly concerning features of the transaction process. No
substantive response had s-been received at the time of preparing this report.

- Comment [AIK31! See helow ~they are
public.

Aftachment B,

The request from the Minlster s Ofﬁce thereforep!aces the, Board in a difﬁcuit

ncfudmg guéstioné cilrécted at the current Board and'gotentlal -g" estlonfng i Senate
Comment [AJK4] We shouldattach

Estimates.”; I .
"""""""""""""" R Corman’s-letter only, and say that the - -

omethinghere about-amending /-changing the anaual .
£ E %eﬁ%mm fetter as well as numerous statements/
W&WMM%MW{%WM&W letters are publicly avalfable on the FYl log?

W@%ﬂh&%a%%%&tm&e&w@d—b&mﬂeﬂe :
accountforwhy the annualreport-has been-amendodm _.-=] Comrmant [ATK5]: Or this.could go
T T : balowthenptxons B

the-The Board may wish to consider the following options to expedite the-tabling of
the Annual Report:

1. Refaining the current foreword of the former Chairperson and previde
providing a strongly worded letter thaHetter to-4theto the Minister that
responds to the issues—, including stating the current Board's position (fo be
determined) on the need for an independent inguiry into the ARR purchase,
The letter would commit the iLC to strong and open engagement with the
Government to achieve Indigenous benefits, sunport Government policy
priorities and work collaboratively on challenges currently facing the Board,




This letter would be published on the LC website, A draft letter s at
Attachment C,

It should be noted that this draft includes a commitment made by the
Chairperson to discuss with the Board an operational review of the LG,
including decisions taken by the former Board and their consequences. The
terms of reference for such a review, together with indicative costs, will be
brought to the next Board meeting.

The draft also reflects the Chairperson’s personal views on two matters
advocated by the former Board and that are currently before this Board:
namely, support for Stronger Land Account Bl and the need for a public
inquiry into the ARR purchase. The draft would be altered depending on

Board decisions made on these matters.

—eurrent Chaltparson’s

» __éJle-“‘*Wei—mﬂ*’*GOHﬂﬂwﬁﬁ___ e He

uing option 1 could result in the Minister's continuing to refuse to table the

Purs
Annual Report.

3. Bemeve-Removing those parts of the former Chalrperson's report that the
Minlster considers inaccurate, in particular references to therequests for an
investigation and-the-pesition of the-Government on-thepurshase-efthe-Ayre
Reekinto the ARR purchase. Resorb=Feconmis

Option 2 may be considered inappropriate given the Chairperson’s foreword was
signed by Dr Casey.and her signature would remain on the altered document,

the former Chairperson, and retransmit the report with 2
; oard

ibilitias of the former

——HReplace the report by
foreword’ by the current Chalrperson
fenure.., The current Board inherited the respons

3. OpH ted-there!
Board and retains ownership of the report throughout the pre-tabling

A new Chatrperson’s report, to be sisned by the current

rocessas.




Chalrperson, has been drafted for the Board’s consideration, See
Attachment BD.

Both options 2 and 3 may result In negative commentary by former Directors or
other stakeholders.

byclopLlmiian 4 thoo Albdct o o

Option-2 could-be-considerad mere-appropriateasthe-sirent- Board-inberited-the
responsibiiities of the-for Bosrdand \ il hroushout
the-pre-tabling processes—A-new-Chalrpersenlsreportto-basigned- by-the-ctrent

] RRecommendation

That the Board:
* (Considers the options arising from the Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affalrs’

teguest to amend the ILC Anﬁ_ﬂal.Repart_ZQlﬁfl_—__{l__B
* If option 23 is chosen, considers and approves the new Chalrperson’s report at

-1 Cormumeant [AJK6]: Agrees aresponseto

Attachment 8D, | o

Consldars letter..,
Determine whethar to proceed with a
Investigation Into past decisions...

Prepared by: Approved by:
| . Leo Bator
January 2016 Afg Chief Executive Officer
In preparing this recommendation, 1 lanuary 2016
deciare t have noe conflict of interest In approving this recommendation, 1
___Vdeclare I hgve na conflict of interest |




Attachment A

Chalrperson’s report, ILC Annual Report 2034-15

PDF

Attachment B
Lotter from the Minister for Finance, Senator the Hon Mathias Cormann to Dr Dawn

Casey, ILC Chairperson, 19 Pecember 2014
PDE




Attachment €

Draft latter to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs

January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for Indigenous Affalrs
Parliament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

| refer to the Indigenoué Land Corporation (ILC} Annual Report coverlng the period
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 in which the outgoing Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey,
puts certain matters on the record, and urges certaln actions on Incoming Directors

ant myseif as her successar.

The new |LC Board appointed In October 2015 will be meeting in February 2016 for an
in-depth discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be
setting new directlons in an environment where demands on ILC services are
increasing, the lndngenous population is growing and an agncuitural boom is on our

doorstep.

In 2016 t am alst embarking on a schedule of visits to prominent Indigenous leaders to
discuss their aspirations for thelr communities and how both the ILC and Indigenous
Business Australia (iBA} can assist, | will brief you on the outcomes of these meetings;
however, a number of broad directlons and reguired tasks are already clear to me.

First and foremost, | want to put on the record the JLC Board's strong commltment fo
collaboration with the Australian Government and to meeting all requirements of our
overarching leglslation, the Publfic Governance, Performance and Accountability Act
2013. We will be working with the Government to achieve the ILC's legislative purpose
and providing support {within our leglslative remit} to policy priorities of the
Government. As Directors we recognise the benefits, to the ILC and the Indigenous
people It serves, of a close, cooperative and productive relationship with the
Government, characterised by open communication. | am convinced the provisions of
the current Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 are adeqguate in defmmg the

ILC's purpose and governance.




[ Second, | wilf be discussing with my fellow Directors the need forbe-initiating a
hottom-up review of the ILC's operations, by independent consultants, to Inform our
future processes and strategles, The review wilkshould also consider significant past

decisions and their consequences%mpe%ﬁng%h%&teem&eﬁhis—ww‘
with a report to be provided to Parliament in the iLC Annual Report 2015-16,

As concurrent Chair of IBA, t will be working to forge stronger links between |BA and
the ILC and to build and leverage the agencies’ combined asset base for the benaflt of

Indigenous Australians and of Australla as a whole,

As you know, an immediate challenge facing the ILCIs refinancing, in the first half of
this year, a substantial part of the debt incurred through the ILC’s purchase of Ayers
Rock Resart. We look forward to working with you and your department to develop
for Government consideratlon an alternative refinancing option that we hope will
minimise the ILC's Interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources for its
core functions and to support the outstanding Indigenous job-creation outcomes at
the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenous connections. Fdo not
helieve that the orlginal transaction needs to be investigated any further than It

already has been, :

A second malor concern for Directors Is that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Land Account are generally inadequate to meet the demands heing made on the
ILC. Indeed, the [eglslated requirement to provide a minimum level of annual funding
to the ILC could see the Land Account’s capital balance decrease based on current
returns from the aflowable investments of the Land Account. Meanwhile, the
Indlgenous population is growing at an estimated 2.3 per cent per annum, and the
Indigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40 per cent of the Australian land
mass according to the December 2015 report to COAG on Indigenous land
adminlstration and use. 1 look forward to discussing with you and the Minister for
Finance a strategic approach to achieving a higher rate of return from the Land

Account, benchmarked to the Future Fund.

Increases in revenue to the ILC, both from the Land Account and from our three
commercial subsidiaries, are essential glven the Board’s desire to play a greater role in
supporting the Government's Indigenous and broader policy agendas. The ILC already
delivers strongly on the Government's Closing the Gap priority of ‘getting adults into
work’; it Is a major provider of training-to-employment programs, aspecially in remote
Australla, and around 30 per cent of total ILC Group-staff are Indigenous people.

The Government is priotitising the development of northern Australia where ILC
subsidiary National Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises (NIPE) operates an extensive cattle
business across 13 propertles. The White Paper on Developing Northern Australia
highlights the opportunities available to such agribusinesses, given northern Australia’s
proximity to growing Astan markets. Through its commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC




is séeking to build the Indigenous presence In the northern cattle industry giving
Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and influence,

‘The White Paper recognises that achleving better economic outcomes on Indigenous
land is essential to northern development, in light of the extent of Indigenous Jand
ownership across a complex array of land-titles, The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporation’s considerable expertise in fostering economic development on
Indigenous-held land, recognising that economic benefits are most effectively realised
when the other benefits specifled in our leglslation—environmental, social and
cultural—are also realised, As the ILC has demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote
Australia are well placed to earn income from unconventional and innovatlve sources,
including ecosystem services, carbon farming and water management.

As chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to increase the ILC's Impact,
Influence, effectiveness and reach. | am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous
Australians. | belisve the two agencies | chalr need to embrace a business mode! based
on growth, commercial sustainabtlity and collaboration across the Australian
community {including mobilising greater private-sector interest and investmejnt}.

“The new ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across its various activities. We will learn from
the past and move on, The ILC was established to benefit Indigenous Australians and
that is what | will ask my fellow Board members to focus on because Indigenous
people across Australia depend on what we do, and how well we do it. The new Board
marks a new era for the ILC, | look forward to working with you over the coming years.

Yours sincerefy

Eddie Fry
Chalr







Attachment BD

Sugpested-Forewerd-—ChairMeEddie-FeyDraft foreword' from ILC Chairperson, My
Eddie Fry '
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Petty, Barry

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: Wednesday. 13 January 20116 10:29 AM

To: Gumley, Kate; Nguyen, Tri

Subject: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft

Attachments: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) (2) (2) (3).docx

Hi Kate and Tri

] am still working on the attachments (a revised foreword), but 1 am just about to head into a meeting and
wanted to get this to you now for your comment. ' ‘

The meeting should only go for 30mins and [ then be able to talk through any changes you would fike, also

great if you want to track in any changes.
Thanks

Alice







& Australian Government

" Indigenous Land Corporation

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 2014~15

Purpose

To seek the Board’s reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 201415 prior to its
tabling.

Recommendation

That the Board:
' Agrees to one of the options proposed, or an alternative to respond to arising
request from the Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affuir’s to amend the ILC

Annual Report 2014-15

. If Option 1 is chosen, provide feedback on draft letter at Attachment C, including
whether or not to proceed with a retrospective inquiry in the previous

Chairperson’s tenure
«  If Option 2 is chosen, delete paragraph of concern to the Minister in foreword

+ If Option 3 is chosen, considers and approves the new Chairperson’s report at
Attachment D

Background

The IL.C is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled In Parliament, The
report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016 was transmitted to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been

subject to ministerial review prior to tabling.

Issties

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, has
advised the ILC's acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr Leo Bator, that the Minister will not
agree to table the draft ILC Annual Repott 2014-15 in its current form, because the
Minister belleves there are inaccuracles in Dr Casey's overarching report on the
performance of the ILC which forms a ‘foreword’ to the report. This text is at
Attachment A. The Minister's Office would like the matter settled quickly so the report

can be tabled ahead of Senate Estimates on 18 February 2016.




It is understood that the Minister's concerns centre on references to the Government’s
position on the need for an independent public inquiry into the purchase of the Ayers .
Rock Resort {ARR), an inquiry that was strongly advocated by the former ILC Board: -

The Australian Government has continued to refuse the ILC’s requests for an
investigation, despite many representations to Minister Scullion, to the Minister
for Finance, the Hon Matthias Cormann MP (in his role as regulator of public-
sector quthorities) and to the Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott MP. In
correspondence dated December 2014, Minister Cormann indicated he agreed
to an inguiry, but referred the matter to Minister Scuflion. Minister Scullion
refused to inftiate an inquiry on the basis that the matter had already been
investigated, Challenged to provide ‘new information’, the ILC once again
examined all the records in its possession and in May 2015 wrote to the Prime
Minister adding to the extensive information already supplied to the
Government. The letter to the Prime Minister enclosed all relevant doctiments
and detailed five particularly concerning features of the transaction process. No
substantive response had been received at the time of preparing this report.

Documents in the ILC’s possession {many of which have been made public through
Freedom of Information processes) Indicate that the former Chairperson’s account of
the matters currently in contention is accurate. See the correspondence from the

Minister for Finance at Attachment B.

The request from the Minister’s Office therefore places the Board in a difficult
position, The report under review covers the tenure of the former Chairperson and
Board. The IL.C’s amending or deleting Dr Casey’s report could be viewed as unethical,
given the legislated independence of the ILC Board and the 1L.C’'s commitment to the
highest governance standards. Any amendment is highly likely to be noticed by
members of the former Board and likely to give rise to some public controversy,
including guestions directed at the current Board and potential questioning at Senate

Estimates,

The Board may wish to consider the following options to expedite tabling of the
Annual Report:

1, Retaining the current foreword of the former Chairperson and providing a
strongly worded letter to the Minister that responds to the issues, including
stating the current Board’s position (to be determined} on the need for an
independent inquiry into the ARR purchase, The letter would commit the ILC to
strong and open engagement with the Government to achieve Indigenocus
benefits, support Government policy priorities and work collaboratively on
chalienges currently facing the Board. This letter would be published on the IL.C

website. A draft letter is at Attachment C.




e It should be noted that this draft includes a commitment made by the
Chairperson to discuss with the Board an operational review of the ILC,
including decisions taken by the former Board and their consequences, The
terms of reference for such a review, together with indicative costs, will be
brought to the next Board meeting. :

The draft also reflects the Chalrperson’s personal views on two matters
advocated by the former Board and that are currently before this Board:
namely, support for Stronger Land Account Bill and the need for a public
inquiry into the ARR purchase. The draft would be altered depending on

Board decisions made on these matters.

Pursuing option 1 could result in the Minister’s continuing to refuse to table the

Annual Report.

2. Removing those parts of the former Chairperson’s report that the Minister
considers inaccurate, in particular references to requests for an investigation

into the ARR purchase,

Option 2 may be considered Inappropriate given the Chairperson’s foreword was
signed by Dr Casey and her sighature would remain on the altered docurent.

1. Replace the report by the former Chaleperson, and retransmit the report with a
“foreword’ by the current Chairperson. The current Board inherited the
responsihilities of the former Board and retalns ownership of the report
throughout the pre-tabling pracesses. A new Chairperson’s report, to be signed
by the current Chairperson, has been drafted for the Board’s consideration. See

Attachment D.

Both options 2 and 3 may result in negative commentary by former Directors of
other stakeholders.

Recommendation

That the Board: » ' |

L]

Considers the options arising from the Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs’

request to amend the ILC Annual Report 2014-15
Option 1 is chosen, provide feedback on draft letter at Attachment C, including

whether or not to proceed with a retrospective inquiry in the previous

Chairperson’s tenure A , .
If Option 2 is chosen, delete paragraph of concern to the Minister in foreword

If option 3 is thosen, considers and approves the new Chairperson’s report at

Attachment D.




Prepared by:

January 2016

in preparing this recommendation, |
declare | have no conflict of interest

Approved by:

Leo Bator
A/g Chief Executive Officer

January 2016

In approving this recommendation,

declare | have no conflict of interest

Attachiment A

Chairperson’s rs_aport; ILC Annual Report 201415

[PDF]

Attachment B

Letter from the Minister for Finance, Senator the Hon Mathias Cormann to Dr Dawn
Casey, ILC Chairperson, 19 December 2014

[PDF]




Attachment C

Draft letter to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs

January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minlster for Indigenous Affairs
Parliament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

I refer to the Indigenous Land Corporation (ILC) Annual Report covering the period
“from 1. July 2014 to 30 June 2015 In which the outgoing Chatrperson, Dr Dawn Casey,
puts certain matters on the record, and urges certain actions on incoming Directors

and myself as her successor.

The new ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting in February 2016 for an
in-depth discussion of our strategic priorities and vislon for the future; we will be
setting new directions in an environment where demands on ILC services are
increasing, the Indigenous population is growing and an agricultural boom is on our

doorstep.

In 2016 | am also embarking on a schedule of visits to prominent [ndigenous leaders to
discuss their aspirations for their communities and how both the ILC and Indigenous
Business Australia (IBA} can assist. | will brief you on the outcomes of these meetings;
however, a number of broad directions and required tasks are already clear to me.

First and foremost, | want to put on the record the iLC Board’s strong commitment to
collaboration with the Australian Government and to meeting all requirements of our
overarching legislation, the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act
2013. We will be working with the Government to achieve the ILC's legislative purpose
and providing support {within our legislative remit) to policy priorities of the
Government. As Directors we recognise the benefits, to the ILC and the Indigenous
people it serves, of a close, cooperative and productive relationship with the
Government, characterised by open communication. [ am convinced the provisions of
the current Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 are adequate in defining the

ILC’s purpose and governance,




Second, | will be discussing with my fellow Directors the need for a bottom-up review
of the [LC's operations, by independent consultants, to inform our future processes
and strategies. The review should also consider significant past decisions and their -
consequences, with a report to be provided to Parliament in the ILC Annual Report

2015-16.

As concurrent Chair of IBA, | will be working to forge stronger links between IBA and
the ILC and to build and leverage the agencies’ combined asset base for the benefit of

Indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole.

As you know, an immediate challenge facing the ILC is refinancing, in the first half of
this year, a substantial part of the debt incurred through the ILC's purchase of Ayers
Rock Resort. We look forward to working with you and your department to develop
for Government consideration an alternative refinancing option that we hope will
minimise the IL.C’s interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources for its
core functions and to support the cutstanding Indigenous job-creation outcomes at
the resort, The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a sighificant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has prefound Indigenous connections. I do not
believe that the original transaction needs to be investigated any further than it

already has been.

A second major concern for Directors s that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Land Account are generally inadequate to meet the demands being made on the
ILC. Indeed, the legislated requirement to provide a minimum level of annual funding
to the ILC could see the Land Account’s capital balance decrease based on current
returns from the allowable investments of the Land Account. Meanwhile, the
indigenous population is growing at an estimated 2.3 per cent per annhum, and the
Indigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40 per cent of the Australian land
mass according to the December 2015 report to COAG on indigenous land
administration and use. | look forward to discussing with you and the Minister for
Finance a strategic approach to achieving a higher rate of return from the Land
Account, benchmarked to the Future Fund.

increases in revenue 1o the ILC, both from the Land Account and from our three
commercial subsidiaries, are essential given the Board’s desire to play a greaterrole in
supporting the Government’s Indigenous and broader policy agendas. The ILC already
delivers strongly on the Government’s Closing the Gap priority of ‘getting adults into
worl’; it is a major provider of training-to-employment programs, especially in remote-
Australia, and around 30 per cent of total ILC staff are Indigenous people.

The Government is prioritising the development of northern Australia where 1LC
subsidiary National Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises (NIPE} operates an extensive cattle
business across 13 properties. The White Paper on Developing Northern Australia
highlights the opportunities available to such agribusinesses, given northern Australia’s
proximity to growing Asian markets. Through its commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC




Is seeking to build the Indigenous presence in the northern cattle industry giving
Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and Influence.

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on Indigenous
land is essential to northern development, in light of the extent of indigenous land
ownership across a complex array of titles. The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporation’s considerable expertise In fostering economic development on
Indigenous-held land, recognising that economic henefits are maost effectively realised
when the other benefits specified in our legislation—environmental, social and '
cultural—are also realised. As the [LC has demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote
Australia are well placed to earn income from unconventional and innovative sources,
including ecosystem services, carhon farming and water management.

~ As chair of the ILC | will work as ! have with IBA—to increase the ILC's impact,
influence, effectiveness and reach. 1 am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous
Australians. | believe the two agencies | chair need to embrace a business model based -
on growth, commetcial sustainabllity and collaboration across the Australian
community {including mobilising greater private-sector interest and investment}.

The new ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across its various activities. We wlif learn from
the past and move on, The ILC was established to benefit Indigenous Australians and
that Is what 1 will ask my fellow Board members to focus on because Indigenous
people across Australia depend on what we do, and how well we do it The new Board
marks a new era for the ILC. | look forward to working with you over the coming years.

Yours sincerely

Eddie Fry
Chalr




Attachment D

Draft ‘foreword’ from ILC Chairperson, Mr Eddie Fry
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Petty, Barry

From: Nguyen, Tri

Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2016 10:46 AM

To: : Kemble, Alice

Cc: Gumley, Kate

Subject: RE: Board paper - cansideration of the SLA Bill.docx

Attachments: Board paper - consideration of the SLA Bill.doc

Thanks Alice,

Please see attached. | have not check it against the then Board’s resolution so someone should check to make sure

we have captured it all.
You should also add the standard paragraph before the recommentation section to say that Finance and Legal have

reviewed the paper.
Cheers
Tri . . e EECIRE N . R AL T I A b LI e mamm s e e Rau RaSS 4 mhpate s mastat VTR re el rmem e Mrgan mes mm e d £bak memnan nawhy gt s Re

From: Kemble, Alice |

Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2016 10:40 AM

To: Nguyen, Tri

Cc: Gumiey, Kate

Subject: Board paper - consideration of the SLA Bill.docx

Hi Tri

Attached is a draft board paper on the SLA Bilt for your comment please.
Happy for you to track in any changes you would fike, Happy to discuss too.

Apologies for the timing, i understand Leo is keen to see this later this morning.

[ am just working on the other two papers —1the ARR public inquiry and the annual report — and will have

these to you for review shortly.
Thanks

Alice







BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 19718 January 2016

CONSIDERATION OF THE ABORIGINAL AND TORRES STRAIT ISLANDER
(A STRONGER LAND ACCOUNT) BILL 2014

Purpose

To seek the Board’s consideration of the Board’s support for the” Aboriginal and Torres Strait
istander (A Stronger Land Account) Bill 2014

Recommendation

That the Board:
+  Agrees to ceqse the ILC’s pursuit of legislative change through the Aboriginal and Torres

Strait Islunder (A Stronger tand Accountj Bifl 2014
+  Agrees to continue to work with the Government on measures to increase the Land

Account’s annual return and real capital value

Backgound

Prior to a signiffcant change in ILC Board membership on 19 October 2015, the Board had been
pursuing adoption by the Australlan Parliament of an amended Abariginal and Torres Straft
Islander (A Stronger Land Account) Bill 2014 (‘SLA Bill'}, The SLA Bill was developed in response
to a review of the ILC and indigenous Business Australia by the Minister for Indigenous Affalrs
i December 2013, with a view to amalgamating the two enfities, At that time, the ILC Board
was concerned that such an amalgamation would undermine the integrity and purpose of the
Land Account, exposing It to pressure to support activities beyond the scope of the ILC's
legistated purpose. Additionally, the Board was of the view that the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait islander Act 2005 In its current form did not adequately define the purpose or

significance of the Land Account.

issues

Aberiginal and Torres Strait Islunder (A Stronger Land Account) Bill 2614 (*SLA Bill')

The SLA Bill (at Attachment A) seeks to: .
1. Expand the objects of the Larid Account, {0 properly articulate its purpose and origins,

2. Make sure that the Land Account can be used only as originally legislated,
3. [ncrease Indigenous Involvement in the Land Account and the ILC through various

mechanisms, - ‘
4, Lockin the highest standards of corporate governance In the ILC,
Allow the Land Account to grow in real terms over time—it currently has a fixed capital

v

hase.




The SLA Bill was released by the ILC on 24 March 2014, and endorsed in principle by a group of
senior Indigenous leaders gathered in Canberra. The SLA Bill was substantially adopted hy the
Australian Greens and introduced into.the Senate on 24 June 2014 by Senator Rachel Slewert.

The SLA Bill was referred for inquiry to the Senate Community Affairs Legislation Comimittee
where the main Committee report recommended the Bill not be enacted, deeming It
unnecessary and duplicative of existing requirements and duties that apply under the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013+ and the Aborlginal and Torres Strait

Istander Act 2005 (ATSI Act).

Following receipt of the Committee’s repott, the Board resolved {Meeting No 187} to continue
to pursue legislative reform via an amended SLA Bill, incorporating feedback from public
submissions to the Senate inquiry. It also resolved to engage concurrently with the
Government on other measures to increase the capital balance of the Land Account. Despite
efforts to address concerns raised by the Senate Committee, there has been no indication that

Parliament is likely to adopt the SLA Bili in its entirety.

The Land Account

The Land Account was set up to provide a secure source of funding to the ILC in perpetuity.
The Land Account has a fixed capital base, which is designed to grow from its 2004 balance
with inflation (CP!) — ie malntain a real capital value, The ATSI Act currently provides that the
ILC receive an annual payment of $45 million, indexed by the {CPY), from the Land Account.
Additional payments can be made to the ILC where the actual capital value of the Land

Account exceeds the real capital value,

As the size of the Indigenous estate grows and the Indigenous population increases,
Land Account revenues are proving increasingly inadequate to meet the'land acquisition and
land management needs generated across indigenous Australia.

The SLA Bill proposed a small amendment to the Land Account which would enable half of any
excess payments currently flowing to the ILC to be relnvested back into the Land Account to
ensure growth in the capital base over time. In addition to the proposed Land Account change
in the SLA Bill, the ILC Board has been pursuing discussions with Government to support
higher rate of returns from the Land Account.

The ILC has proposed the Government amend relevant legislation to allow a broadening of the
investment parameters of the Land Account and allow the Land Account ta be managed by the
Future Fund Agency, similar to the other special purpose funds that it manages. The
Government has already indicated a wiilingness to consider broadening the investment

parameters, which would also Involve legislative change.

Deloitte have modelled an assumed 1% increase in long-term Land Account returns from
widened investment parameters (ie CP1 +3,5%); such an increase would potentially build the
Land Account by some $450m by 2030. Annually this would provide around $20m additional
income to the JLC which would assist substantially in the payment of both principal and
interest on the ARR debt, and ultitmately enabling the ILC to fund land acquisition and

managemaent above pre ARR acquisition levels,




Suggested Way Forward

Given the increasing demands on the revenue of the ILC and the lack of Parliamentary support
for the SLA Bill, it is recommended the ILC Board focus its efforts on engaging with
Government to develop specific legislative measures aimed at broadening the investment

parameters of the Land Account and a higher rate of return.

Should the Board agree to cease pursuing the SLA Bill and focus its efforts on the Land Account
parameters and revenue, it is recommended that the Chair write to Government, the

-Opposition, the Greens and key Indigenous Stakeholders previously corresponded with on the
SLA Bill of the new approach, the rationale and seeking thelr support.

Recommendation

That the Board:
+  Agrees to cease the ILC’s pursuit of legislative change through the Aborlfginal and Torres

Stroft Islander (A Stronger Land Account) Bilf 2014
+  Agrees to continue to work with Government on measures to increase the Land Account’s

annual return and real capltal value
»  Agrees the Chalr write to key stakeholders advising of the decision.

Prepared by: Approved by:
Leo Baltor

13 January 2016 Chief Executive Officer

in preparing this recommendation, | declare | 13 January 2016 '

have no c?onf tict of interest | In approving this recommendation, fdeclare |
fhave no conflict of interest
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Petty, Barry

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: : Wednesday, 13 January 2016 1:38 PM

To: McFadyen, Denise '

Cc: Gumley, Kate; Nguyen, Tri

Subject: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft

Attachments: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) {2) (2) (3) {4) (3) (3).docx
Hi Denise

The attached paper has been amended to reflect comments from Leo and has now been cleared by Leo.
Are you please able to include the two attachments and do a final edit only check.

Leo is still keen to see the draft foreword and | said | will email this to him when we have a version settled
between us.

‘Many thanks Denise.
Kate — will give you a call.

Alice







BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Purpose

To seek the Board’s consideration of a revised foreword to the ILC Annual Report
2014-15. '

Recommendation

That the Board:

« Agrees the draft Chairman’s foreword at Attachment A and to retransmit the ILC
Annual Report 2014—15 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs.

Background

The ILC is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled in Parliament. The
report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 was transmitted to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chairpersan, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been
subject to ministerial review prior to tabling. The Minister is required to table the
report for Parliament’s consideration with 15 sitting days. More than 15 sitting days
have passed since the report was transmitted.

Issues

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs, Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, has
advised the ILC’s acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr Leo Bator, that the Minister will not
agree to table the ILC Annual Report 2014-15 in its current form, because the Minister
believes there are inaccuracies in Dr Casey’s overarching report on the performance of
the ILC which forms a foreword’ to the report. This text is at Attachment A.

It is understood that the Minister’s concerns centre on references to the Government'’s
position on the need for an independent public inquiry into the purchase of the Ayers
Rock Resort {ARR), an inquiry that was strongly advocated by the former ILC Board.
The Minister's Office would like the matter settled quickly so the report can be tabled
ahead of Senate Estimates on 18 February 2016.

The Chairperson is keen for the ILC to establish a strong and positive relationship with
the Minister, so as to support favourable consideration of issues essential to the ILC's




future, including negotiating legislative change to enable the capital balance of the
Land Account to grow and increase annual returns to the ILC, developing an agreed
approach to refinancing the debt on Ayers Rock Resort, and above all delivering the
best outcomes for Indigenous Australians and the Indigenous estate. It is in this
context that the Minister’s request could be considered.

It would not be appropriate to remove those parts of the former Chairperson’s report
that the Minister considers inaccurate, given the Chairpetson’s foreword was signed by
Dr Casey and her signature would remain on the altered document.

An alternative, preferred option would be to replace the foreword in its entirety. This
option would ameliorate the Minister’s concerns and facilitate the tabling of the
Annual Report. It would also provide an opportunity for the new Chairperson and
Board to set out their aspirations for the ILC. A draft replacement foreword is at

Attachment B.

Notwithstanding the positive approach reflected in the new Chairperson’s foreword,
any significant amendment to the draft annual report is likely to be noticed by
members of the former Board and could result in public questioning, including at
Senate Estimates.

Legal, Policy and Financial Compliance

This paper has been quality assured by the Legal, Policy and Finance sections, and
matters raised during the quality assurance process have been resolved. The deasmn

sheet has been cleared by the ILC Legal Section.

Recommendation

That the Board;
e Agrees the draft foreword at Attachment B and to retransmit the ILC Annual

Report 2014-15 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs.

Prepared by: Approved by:
Leo Bator
januéry 2016 A/g Chief Executive Officer
In preparing this recommendation, | ) January 2016
declare | have no conflict of interest In approving this recommendation, |
declare 1 have no conflict of interest




Attachment A

Chairperson’s report, ILC Annual Report 2014-15

[PDF]




Attachment B

Draft ‘foreword’ from ILC Chairperson, Mr Eddie Fry

The Indigenous Land Corporation (ILC) was set up in 1995 to provide land-related
benefits to Indigenous Australians. This report provides ample evidence of the
achievements of the ILC’s land acquisition and land management programs and of its
three subsidiaries, Voyages Indigenous Tourism Australia, National Indigenous Pastoral
Enterprises {NIPE) and the National Centre of indigenous Excellence over the 2014-15

financial year,

The iLC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meéting next month for an in-depth
discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be setting of our
approach to delivering the ILC’s functions in an environment where demands on ILC
setvices are increasing, the Indigenous population is growing and an agricultural boom
is on our doorstep.

We have already established the basis of a new, open and productive relationship with
the Australian Government and will be providing strong support {within our legislative
remit) to Government policy priorities. :

We also need to work with Government to forge a common approach to two particular
issues of concern to the Board. '

The first is refinancing, in the first half of this year, a substantial part of the debt
incurred through the ILC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resort. We are seeking an option
that minimises the ILC's interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources
for its programs and to support the outstanding indigenous job-creation outcomes at
- the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenous connections.

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Land Account, whose revenues fund the ILC's operations, are generally inadequate to
meet the demands being made on the corporation. Indeed, the legislated requirement
to provide a minimum level of annual funding to the ILC could see the Land Account’s
capital balance decrease based on current returns from the allowable investments of
the Land Account. Meanwhile, the Indigenous population is growing at an estimated
2.3 per cent per annum, and the Indigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40
per cent of the Australian land mass according to the December 2015 Report to COAG
-on Indigenous Land Administration and Use. ! look forward to discussing with the
Minister for Indigenous Affairs and the Minister for Finance a strategic approach to
achieving a higher rate of return from the Land Account, benchmarked to the Future

Fund.

Increases in revenue to the ILC, both from the Land Account and from our three
subsidiaries, are essential given the Board’s desire to play a greater role in supporting




the Government’s Indigenous and broader policy agendas. The ILC already delivers
strongly on the Government’s Closing the Gap priority of ‘getting adults into work’; it is
a major provider of training-to-employment programs, especially in remote Australia,
and around one third of total ILC staff are Indigenous people.

The Government is prioritising the development of northern Australia where ILC
subsidiary National Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises operates an extensive cattle
business across 13 properties. The White Paper on Developing Northern Australia,
released in June 2015, highlights the opportunities available to such agribusinessés,
given northern Australia’s proximity to growing Asian markets. Through its
commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC is seeking to build the tndigenous presence in the
northern cattle industry giving Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and

influence.

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on Indigenous
land is essential to northern development, in light of the extent of Indigenous land
ownership across a complex array of titles, The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporation’s considerable expertise in fostering economic development on '
Indigenous-held land, recognising that economic benefits are most effectively realised
when the other benefits specified in our legislation—environmental, social and
cultural—are also realised. As the ILC has demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote
Australia are well placed to earn income fram unconventional and innovative sources,
including ecosystem services, carbon farming and water management.

I am very excited by the prospects | see for the ILC, working in tandem with the other
Australian Government agency that | chair, Indigenous Business Australia (IBA). lam
committed to building and leveraging the two agencies’ combined asset base for the
benefit of Indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole.

As chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to increase the ILC's impact,
influence, effectiveness and reach. I am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous
Australians. I believe the ILC and IBA need to embrace a business model based on
growth, commercial sustainability and collaboration across the Australian community
(including mobilising greater private-sector interest and investment).

The new ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across its various activities. We will learn from
the past and move on. The ILC was established to benefit Indigenous Australians and
that is what [ will ask my fellow Board members to focus on because Indigenous
people across Australia depend on what we do, and how well we do it.

Finally, | would like to thank the former Board in place during the 2014-15 financial
year, including the Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey. We will build on their good work.




Eddie Fry
Chair

Xxx January 2016
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Peity, Barry

From: Gumley, Kate

Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2016 11:50 AM

To: Kemble, Alice; Nguyen, Tri; Lindsay, Jodie
Subject: FW: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Drait

Attachments: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) (2) (2) (3).docx

Here are some new words

Kate Gumley

Exsoutive Director, Strategy
Indigenous Land Corporation
Redacted s 47F

w: www.ils.gov.au

From: Kémb!e, Alice
Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2016 10:59 AM

To: Gumley, Kate; Nguyen, Tri
Subject: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft

Hi Kate and Tri

[ am still working on the attachments (a revised foreword), but 1 am just about to head into a meeting and
wanted to get this to you now for your comment.

" The meeting should only go for 30mins and | then be able to talk through any changes you would like, also

great if you want to track in any changes.
Thanks

Alice
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BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197--18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 201415

Purpose

To seek the Board’s reconsideration of the LC Annual Report 2014-15 prior to its
tabling.

Recommaendation

That the Board:

Agrees to one of the options proposed, or an alternative to respond fo - arishg
request from the Offlee-efthe Minister for Indigenous Affair's to amend the ILC
Annunl Report 2014-15

If Option 1 Is chosen, provide feedback on draft leiter at Attachment C, including
whether or not to proceed with a retrospective inguiry into ILC operations for the

previous five ve arsip-the-previeus Chairpersons-tenure

If Option 2 is chosen, delete paragraph of concern to the Minlster In foreword

+ If Option 3 is chosen, cansiders and approves the new Chalrperson’s report at
Attachment D

Background

“The ILC is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled n Parliament. The
report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2016 was transmitted to the Minister on

21 September 2015 by former Chalrperson, Br Dawn Casey, after which it has been
subject to ministerial review prior to tabling. The Minister has no authority to approve
the Annual Report as the 1LC is independent of Government; he can only do this by
issuing a general direction under the ATS| Act. The Minister's role is to table it for
Parlfament’s consideration, and he must do that within 15 sitting days of completion of
the ILC’s Annual Report. X sitting days have passed since we transmiited the report]

Issues

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, has
that the Minister wili not
because the

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affairs,
advised the IL.C's acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr Leo Bator,
agree to table the draft {LC Annual Report 2014~15 in Its current farm,




Minister believes there are fnaccuracies in Dr Casey's overarching report on the
performance of the ILC which forms a “foreword’ to the report. This text Is at
Attachment A, The Minister's Qffice would llke the matter settled quickly so the report
can be tabled ahead of Senate Estimates on 18 February 2016,

It is understood that the Minister's concerns centre on references to the Government's
position on the need for an Independent public inquiry into the purchase of the Ayers
Rock Resart (ARR}, an inquiry that was strongly advocated by the former ILC Board:

The Austrafian Government has continued to refuse the ILC’s requests for an
investigation, desplte many representations to Minister Scullion, to the Minister
for Finance, the Hon Matthias Cormann MP {in his role as regulator of public-
sector authorities] and to the Prime Minister, the Hon Tony Abbott MP. In
correspondence dated December 2014, Minister Cormann indicated he agreed
to an inquiry, but referred the matter to Minister Scullion, Minister Scullion
refused to initiate an Inquiry on the basis that the matter had already been
investigated, Challenged to provide ‘new information’, the ILC once again
examined oll the records in its possession and in May 2015 wrote to the Prime
Minister adding to the extensive information already supplied to the
Government. The letter to the Prime Minister enclosed alf relevant documents
and detaifed five particularly concerning features of the transaction pracess., No
substantive response had been received at the time of preparing this report.

This correspondence to the ILC was made public Qaeufﬂemt&in—the—é&C—s—pessessien
{many-of which-have-beentmade public-through Freedom of Information processes, it

Is clear from Minlster Cormann’s letter Hndieate that the former Chairperson’s
account of the matters currently in contention is accurate. See the correspondence

from the Minister for Finance at Attachiment B,

The request from the Minister’s Office therefore places the Board in a difficult
position. The report under review covers the tenure of the former Chairpersen and
Board, The ILC's amending or deleting Dr Casey’s report could be viewed as unethical,
given the legislated independence of the ILC Board and Australian standards of
corporate the ks commitmentto-the-highest governance, standards, Any
amendment Is highly likely to be noticed by members of the former Board and likely to
glve rise to some public controversy, Including questions directed at the current Board

and potential questioning at Senate Estimates.

The Board may wish to conslder the followi ng options to expedite tabling of the
Annhual Report:

1. Retaining the current foreword of the former Chairperson and providing a
strongly worded letter to the Minlster that responds to the Issues, Including
stating the current Board's position {to be determined} on the need for an
independent inquiry into the ARR purchase. The letter would commit the ILC to




strong and open engagement with the Government to achieve Indigenous

benefits, support Government policy priorities and work collaboratively on

challenges currently facing the Board. This letter would be published on the ILC

website, A draft letter is at Attachment C,

e [t should be noted that this draft Inchides a commitment made by the
Chalrperson to discuss-with-the Board an operational review of the ILC,
including decisions taken by the former Board and thelr consequences. The
terms of reference for such a review, together with indlcative costs, will be
brought to the next Board meeting,

¢ The draft also reflects the Chalrperson's personal views on two matters
advocated by the former Board and that are currently before this Board:
namely, support for Stronger Land Account Bill and the need for a public
inquiry Into the ARR purchase. The draft would be alterad depending on

Board decisions made on these matters,

Pursuing option 1 could resuitin the Minister's continuing to refuse to table the

Annual [Report,_As the ILC has fulfilled its obligations for the Annual Report .

under Section 193 (k) of the ATSI Act and the PGPA Acts, the ILC could choose
to publish the report on its website,

2. Removing those parts of the former Chairperson’s report that the Minister
considers inaccurate, In particular references to requests for an investigation

Into the ARR purchase.

Option 2 may be considered inappropriate given the Chairperson’s foreword was
signed by Dr Casey and her signature would remain on the aftered document,

3. Replace the report by the former Chalrperson, and retransmit the report with a
‘foreword’ by the current Chalrperson. The current Board Inherited the
responsibilities of the former Board and retains ownership of the report
throughout the pre-tabling processes. A new Chalrperson’s report, to be signed
by the current Chalrperson, has heen drafted for the Board's consideration. See

‘ Attachment D.

Both options 2 and 3 may result in negative commentary by formet Directors or
other stakeholders.

Racommendation

That the Board:
l + Considers the options arlsing from the-Office-afthe Minister for Indigenous Affairs’

reguest to amend the ILC Annual Report 201415
Option 1 is chosen, provide feedback on draft letter at Attachment €, including

whether or not to proceed with a retrospective inquiry tn the previous
Chalrperson’s tenure '

__,.-A{' Comnitent [gl]: What happens then l




+ |f Option 2 is chosen, delete paragraph of concern to the Minister in foreword
« If option 3 Is chosen, considers and approves the new Chalrperson's report at

Attachment D.

Prepared by: Approved by:
Leo Bator
January 2016 . A/e Chief Executive Officer
in preparing this recommendation, | January 2016
declare { have no conflict of Interest In approving this recommendation, |
_ .| declare I have no conflict of interest

Attachment A

Chairperson’s report, ILC Annual Report 2014-15

[PDF]

Attachment B

Letter from the Minister for Finance, Senator the Hon Mathias Cormann to Dr Dawn
Casey, LC Chairperson, 19 December 2014

[PDF]




Attachment C

Draft letter to the Minlster for Indigenous Affairs

January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for Indigenous Affaits
Parfiament House

Canherra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

i refer to the Indigenous Land Corporation (ILC) Annual Report covering the perfed
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 in which the outgolng Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey,
puts certain matters on the record, and urges certaln actlons on Incoming Directors

and myself as her successor.

The new ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting In February 2016 far an
in-depth discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be
setting new directions in an envirenment where demands on ILC services are
Increasing, the Indigenous papulation is growing and an agricuftural boom is on our

doorstep.

In 2016 | am also embarking on a schedule of vislts to prominent Indigenous leaders to
discuss their aspirations for their communities and how hoth the [LC and Indigenous
Business Australla {IBA} can assist. | will brief you on the outcomes of these maetings;
however, a number of broad directions and required tasks are already clear to me,

Eirst and foremost, | want to put on the recotd the [LC Board’s strong commitment to

. collaboration with the Australian Government and to meeting all requirements of our
overarching legislation, the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act
2013. We will be working with the Government to achieve the | LC's legislative purpose
and providing support (within our legistative remit) to policy priorities of the
Government, As Directors we recognise the henefits, to the ILC and the Indigenous
people it serves, of a close, cooperative and productive relationship with the
Government, charactetised by open communication. | am canvinced the provisions of
the current Aborfginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005 are adequate In defining the

ILC's purpose and governance,




Second, | will be discussing with my fellow Directors the need for a bottom-up review
of the ILC’s operations, by independent consultants, to inform our future processes
and strategles. The review should also consider significant past decisions and their

- consequences, with a report to be provided to Parliament in the ILC Annual Report

2015-16.

As concurrent Chair of 1BA, | will be worldng to forge stronger links between [BA and
the ILC and to build and leverage the agencies’ combined asset base for the benefit of

Indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole,

As you know, an immediate challenge facing the ILC is refinancing, in the first half of
this year, a substantlal part of the debt incurred through the ILC's purchase of Ayers
Rock Resort, We look forward to working with you and your department to develop
for Gavernment consideration an alternative refinan¢ing option that we hope wiil
minimise the ILC's Interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources for its
core functions and to support the outstandiag Indigenous job-creation outcomes at
the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenous connections. | do not
believe that the original transaction needs to be investigated any further than it

already has been,

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Land Account are generally inadequate to meet the demands being made on the
ILC, Indeed, the legislated requirement to provide a minimum level of annual funding
to the ILC could see the Land Account’s capital balance decrease based on current
returns from the allowable investments of the Land Account. Meanwhile, the
indigenous population is growing at an estimated 2.3 per dent per annum, and the
Indigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40 per cent of the Australfan fand
mass according to the December 2015 report to COAG on Indigenous land
administration and use. 1 look forward to discussitig with you and the Minister for
Finance a strategic approach to achleving a higher rate of returh from the Land
Account, benchmarked to the Future Fund,

increases in revenue to the LG, both from the Land Account and from our three
commaercial subsidiaries, are essential given the Board’s desire {o play a greater role in
supporting the Government’s Indigenous and broader policy agendas, The [LC already
delivers sirongly on the Government’s Closing the Gap priority of ‘getting adults into
worl’; it Is a major provider of training-to-employment programs, especially in remote
Australa, and around 30 per cent of total ILC staff are Indigenous people.

The Government Is prioritising the development of northern Austrafia where ILC
subsidiary National Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises (NIPE) operates an extensive cattle
business across 13 properties, The White Paper on Developing Northern Australia
highlights the opportunities available to such agribusinesses, given northern Australia’s
proximity to growing Asian markets. Through its commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC




is seeking to build the Indigenous presence in the northern cattle industry giving
Indlgenous Interests greater commercial strength and influence,

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on Indigenous
tand Is essential to northern development, In light of the extent of Indigenous land
ownership across a complex array of titles. The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporation’s considerable expertise in fosterlng econ omic development oh
indigenous-held land, recognising that aconomlc henefits are most effectively realised
when the other benefits specified in our legislation—environmental, social and
cultural—are also realised. As the ILC has demonstrated, Indigenous owners In remote
Australla are well placed to earn income fram unconventional and innovative sources,
including ecosystem services, carbon farming and water management.

As chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to Increase the ILC's impact,
influence, effactlveness and reach. | am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for indigenous
Australians. [ believe the two agencfes | chair need to embrace a business model based
on growth, commercial sustainability and collaboration across the Australian
community {including mobilising greater private-sector Interest and investment).

The iew ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across Its varlous activities. we will [earn from ™
the past and move oh, The JLC was established to henefit Indigenous Australians and
that is what I will ask my fellow Board members to focus on because indigenous
people across Australia depend on what we do, and how well we do it. The new Board
marks a new era for the ILC. [ look forward to working with you over the coming years.

Yours sincerely

Eddie Fry
Chair




Attachment D

Draft ‘foreword’ from ILC Chairperson, Mr Eddie Fry
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Petty, Barry

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi Leo

Final one, hopefullyi

Kemble, Allce
Wednesday, 13 January 2016 3:23 PM

Bator, Leo : :
Board paper - Consideration of Annual Report - Final draft for approval now with foreword

Pages from 17290 ILC 2015 AR internals draft 07-10-15.pdf - Adobe Acroba....pdf; Board

" paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (4) (3) (3) (2) (2).docx

The paper now includes a suggested replacement foreword that draws from the previous letter.

Please let me know if you would like any changes to the foreword, The paper is as discussed.

My moblle Is 0413034011 if it is easier to talk through any changes you would like.

Once you are OK with this paper, Sue will be ready to send the papers to the Board,

Thanks

Alice







{ would fike to thank my fellow Board mermbers, and
~the LC's hard-working Board commitiees, for thelr
ccns;dered deliberations and commitment over the
“fast year, and In previous years. | would also like to
‘thank the management and staff of the fLC and its
subsidlary companies who made great efforts this

. year to advance the Board’s priorities, including
better governance, accelerated grant of properties
and putting in place new ways of working wnh
Indigenous land owners.

The ILC began operations on 1 fune 1995 and

Is celebrating its 20th anniversary in 2015. This
anniversary has served to shine a strong light on the
grigins of the ILC and of the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Land Account {the Land Account)
whose ravenues fund the ILC’s land acquisition and
fand management programmes. The ILC and Land
“Account were legislated together, inftially in 1895, as
"part of the complex political settlement negotiated
hetween the then Australfan Government and
lndlgenous leaders after the Mabo judgment
recogmsed natlve title to fand in June 1992, They
" were intended- 1o provide some compensation for
 Indigenous peoples’ widespread loss of land, The
recogmt:on of native title and subsequent legisiation
. “of the Native Trt!e Act 1993 were going to benefit

: many Indigenous- groups, but would not reverse the
Iong history of Indigenous d|spossessmn across the
-‘Jmpst productive areas of Austrai;a

Wider developmems

014~ ‘15 saw a continumg tising trend in native title
_ eiermmations, enlarging the Indigenous estate that
* now Covers ip to 30 per cent of the continent, the
vast majority of it in economically marginal country
across remote northem and central Australia.

Indlgenous Jand and natlve title rights are emerging
‘sirongly.as a national policy issug, aspecially given
<-the widely held view. ot shared by the ALCy that

. "";:ommuqai tenureinhibits economlc tevelopment *

' on fndlgenous land, in November 2014 the Councl
of Australzan Goyernments (COAG) began an

. mvest(gat:on into. Indlgenous land administration
and.use, adwsed by an appomted Expert Indigenous
Worklng Group, In May 2015 the Australian Human
nghts Commlssmn convened a roundtable in
Broome, WA, on Indigenous economic development
and property rights attended by senior lndlgenous
Ieaders including ILC Deputy Chairperson,

- lan. Trust In June 2015 the Australian Law Reform

: '.Commlssmn (ALRC) released Connection to Country,
: Tsreyiew of the Native Titfe Act 1993. The ALRC’s
_' recammendatrons include the need for statutory
form i recogmse ihat natwe tltie nghts include the
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wenty properties were approved to be granted_to

ndigenous corporations ihis;ﬂ‘inapciai yeai;a_nd .
roperty fransfers were achleved (agaznst

divestments in 013-14), in Jiné with the current

icy of active dwestment The ILC: has now

»

ore than- 75 per ceni of the propertzes
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._f‘the emergmg Indlgenous'carbon economy The [LC s commltting $3 i8. mlillon ihrough the Indigenous
2 Fish River.and Merepah Fire Projects in the Northern i Advancement, Strategy, over 12 months from
) Terntory and Queens!and are informing the - - * February. 2015 to provide more than 300 Indigenous

f other -Indlgenous savanna burning ‘jobs, The jobs will be delivered by, NIPE, Voyages and
the il ,__operaied Memman Shearing School near :

‘Brewarrina, NSW, 'NIPE And Voyages can provide -
aining. tesoUrces on a scale not matched by similar
'employers n rural and remote Australia. Trainees
.beneflt from accfed1ted tralning integrated with

the operatlon of the businesses, combined with
'mentormg and life ski[is supporl, Graduates are
‘guarantead the offer of 2 Job inan ILC busmess or

;another enterpnse

rn addmon to Qur Land Our Jobs, iLC fand

..acqu:smon and management projects enabled 2,677
training ¢ outcomes 3nd 902 employment outcomes
'2n 2014~15 through partnershlps WIth thnrd parties

72 strong ‘commitment o ¢
sterm |nvestmen’c and capacny bu;ldmg m the

rms to the governance of the
of the current Board, Directors

16 éach bsnd;ary In pursuzt of greater :
ned operattons as required "

ma‘hce ﬁntab:lrtyAthOB NIPE,
_i]y estabhshed in 2004.10 employ labour on
sses, became a, futly functtonmg

A0 3 "1
_part:es Th peratlons of the NCIE were reviewed,
fparttcularly infhe fight of. 1he increasing LC sub5|dy

equlred to; support the ¢entre’s operations. In
 to this review, the JLC Board made changes

NCIE board ILCanagement ‘has temporarily . -
ed.ar cater. ass;stance 10 the NCIE, pending

al;
ILC and another. é’gutmy authonty, Indigenous
“Business; ralia, (I BA), mltlated by the Minister for
'lndlgénous ffairs, Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion;

he llC Bcard be!ieved the rewew Was, estabhshed .
“to Justity i‘amdgamatlon of the iC and IBA.
‘fo-form alarger agency- focused pnmanly on,
-Indrgenous econamic development, ‘and that such

- & merger: wwotlld be a threat to the Land Account.
S In a. merged agency, the Land Account s revenuas
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Wouid mev:tably be used sooner or Eater, for
urposes other than those, ongma][y legislated, The .. : |
Inister has stated (October 2014) that any plans s
o changes to current arrangem,ents aie. not under

onc_erned that the Land Account s vulnerable and ;
jas dssappomted that the Sironger.| Land Account - .
ill mtroduced ) the Senate: by the Australian,
‘Greensin iune 2014, has 1ot been. supported by
- overnment or the Dpposst:on

e 1H s, ma{n purposes ate to. speli out the
_:purpose of the Land Account in the’ATS| Act, “and -
to'o _sure the Land Account can be used oniy as
rtgmaily mtended 1o acquirg 4 and manage land
" fordndigenous Austrahans it also advances three.
* pther important areas of refoz'm mandating the, -
o -'_-hlghest standards of corporate governance in the
. ILG, Increasing Indigenous input In the ILC, and Land .
Accoont and-enabling the Land. Account 30 grow in
real terms. The proposed. reforms 10 governance are
crucial and include staggermg and lifniiing Dirgctors”
-’terms and mamta;nmg an. rndependent chaur of the

Roy Grbson has been a cfnvfng force behind the
deuelopment of Mossman Gorge Centre.

purchase of Ayers Rock Resort The resort
acqu:red in 2010 11: by a former Board {or inexcess
300 milhon As B itzthe ILC haso rowmgs

the Bill's .'bo'r,'poses a_nd mechahisms.ffr
report.of the commlttee, released in, March 2015
commended agalnst the' Senate 5. passmg the BI"

: orltst re;')or_' fmdmgs \':vere based aimost A
concems exp ressed by o govemment ;het:éf ?!i?: froh:; consultants McGrathN;col f 'onci
departments Einance and Prime Ministerand -

esplft ¢ wide: [ndlqenoos A port forthe Bl" S practfcos underpmnmg ’che acqu151t[o{1 The iLC

ght and. obtamed iega! advice from

Th ILC:Bo olremams commltted to pursunngthe

mpottant reforms in the Stronger Land Accalint- Bl
mont

- 'deoértmen’ts enators and lndlgenous‘
.,and fefine aspects of the

[fesfjoﬁdonce dated December 2014 Mlmster
Corraann: mdmaied he agreed to an Inquiry, but -
ferred the rraaiter to Mm:ster Scuilson Mlmster
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L "_also propases that management of the Land Account
_be transferred;to the Future Fund Management

Agency I, estlma’ied that over the last ten years the
'Land Account would be around $450 million better

. _Sculhon refused io inflate an |nqu|ry on Ihe basns

face a number of sti‘ategrc

_ .:chauenges'
7 rgenerated- from 4 capital fund fixed in real terms,
;WIII be Increaslng[y madequate to meet the land

s ascenano 1 t_o 40 per cent of the annuai revenuas * " acquisition and, In partacu]ar. fand fanagement
“Hlowing from the Land Account to the:|LC coutd _needs generated acrass.indigenous Australla.
“be dwerted 10 pay prmcrpal and interest on, thege . ‘the financial.consequences ¢ of the Ayers Rock

Ioans depend:ng on the }‘manmal contnbut:on Resort purchase will contmue 10 exacerbate these
made by the Resort's revenyes, This financial year _ pressures: The current conversations on ‘unlocking’
considerable Board attention has been aFlocated to + Indigenols land for development are in themselves
the heed to refinance, by May 20186, most of the . :an argument f for more resources to the I, !
borrowmgs on Ayers Rock Resart (2 firianciat 7 Minister Sculhon has already announced that my
or, M Edward Fry, will take up

" oas ChazrperSon ends The tearms of-four other ;
. Directors also end at, thls tlme i' 1 rge the tncom:ng
-::Chajrperson and Board ’:o carry an the important )
: ,,reforms, 40 governange, policy. and programmes, ;
“developed by the.current:Board, | ask that | mcommg " e
"+, Direciots helf yoices to supportmg the .- '
‘;j'_'-'Stronger 4 é_count Bill. to ensure the: tand -
. Account s protected and strengthened Hthe
Govemment is ot persuaded io support this Bill,
45 SeEMS hkeiy, t askthat Directors advance the two -
“legislative proposals. recentiy put 10 the Govemmen’r -
" Both-are necessary if the JLC ls to. go on; fulf‘ lling 1’(5 e
Lo core responsib tle to Indlgenous Aust ' flans e T

,ove 3ll, Land Account revenues, :

'that such a Ioan wouict save,$32 rnflhon in. znte;est
payments over the i fe of the debt The., altematwe
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
2014-15.

Recommendation

That the Board:

» Agrees the draft Chairman’s foreword at Attachment A and to retransmit the ILC
Annual Report 201415 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs. _ ]

Background

The ILC Is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled in Parliament. The
report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 was transmitted to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been
subject to ministerial review prior to tabling. The Minister Is required to table the
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
agree to table the ILC Annual Report 2014-15in its current form, because the Minister
believes there are inaccuracies in Dr Casey’s overarching report on the performance of
the 1LC which forms a “foreword’ to the report. This text is at Attachment A.

it is understood that the Minister’s concerns centre on references to the Government’s
dependent public inquiry into the purchase of the Ayers

hat was strongly advocated by the former ILC Board.
rt can be tabled

poslition on the need for an in

Rock Resort (ARR), an inquiry t
The Minister’s Office would like the matter settled quick[y so the repo

ahead of Senate Estimates on 18 February 2016.

son is keen for the 1.C to establish a strong and positive relationship with

The Chairper _
ation of refinancing the debt on

the Minister, so as to suppott favourable consider




Ayers Rock Resort, and into the future, negotiate legislative change to enable the
capital balance of the Land Account to grow and increase annual returns to the ILC,
and above all, deliver the best outcomes for Indigenous Australians and the Indigenous
estate, It is in this context that the Minister’s request could be considered.

It would not be appropriate to remove those parts of the former Chairperson’s report
that the Minister considers inaccurate, given the Chairperson’s foreword was signed by
Dr Casey and her signature would remain on the altered document.

An alternative, preferred option would be to replace the foreword in its entirety. This
option would ameliorate the Minister's concerns and facilitate the tabling of the
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
matters raised during the quality assurance process have been resolved, The decision

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

Leo Bator l.eo Bator

A/g Chief Executive Officer : Afg Chief Executive Officer

13 January 2016 ' ' 13 January 20156

in preparing this recommendation, | In approving this recommendation, |
declare 1 have no conflict of interest declare | have no conflict of interest




Attachment B — Draft ‘foreword’ from ILC Chairperson, Mr Eddie Fry

The Indigenous Land Corporation {ILC) was set up In 1995 to provide land-related
benefits to Indigenous Australians. This report provides ample evidence of the
achlevements of the ILCs land acquisition and land management programs and of its
three subsidiaries, Voyages Indigenous Tourism Australia, National Indigenous Pastoral
Enterprises (NIPE) and the Natfohal Centre of Indigenous Excellence over the 2014-15

financial year.

The ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting next month for an in-depth
discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be setting of our
approach to delivering the ILC's functions in an environment where demands on {LC
services are increasing, the Indigenous population is growing and an agricultural boom

is on our doorstep.

We have already established the basis of a new, open and productive refationship with
the Australian Government and will be providing strong support (within our legislative

remit) to Government policy priorities.

We also need to work with Government to forge a common a pproach to two particular
issues of concern to the Board.

The first is refinancing, in the first haif of this year, a substantial part of the debt
incurred through the ILC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resort. We are seeking an option
that minimises the ILC’s interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources
for its programs and to support the outstanding Indigenous joh-creation outcomes at
the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenous connections.

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from Aboriginal and Torres Strait

Land Account, whose revenues fund the [LC's operations, are generally inadequate to

meet the demands being made on the corporation. Indeed, the legislated requirement
" to provide a minimum level of annual funding to the ILC could see the Land Account’s

alance decrease based on current returns from the allowable investments of

capital b
at an estimated

the Land Account. Meanwhile, the Indigenous population is growing
2.3 per cent per annum, and the Indigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40
per cent of the Australian fand mass according to the December 2015 Report to COAG
on Indigenous Land Administration and Use. | look forward to discussing with the
Minister for Indigenous Affairs and the Minister for Finance a strategic approach to
achieving a higher rate of return from the Land Account, benchmarked to the Future

Fund.

increases in revenue to the ILC, bath from the Land Account and from our three
subsidiaries, are essential given the Board’s desire to play a greater role in supporting
the Government's Indigenous and broader policy agendas. The ILC already delivers
strongly on the Government’s Closing the Gap priority of ‘getting adults into worlk’; itis




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
released in June 2015, highlights the opportunities available to such agribusinesses,
given northern Australia’s proximity to growing Asian markets. Through its
commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC is seeking to build the Indigenous presence in the
northern cattle Industry giving Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and .

influence.

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic cutcomes on Indigenous
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
Australian Government agency that | chair, Indigenous Business Australia (IBA). |am
commiited to bullding and leveraging the two agencies’ combined asset base for the

benefit of Indigenous Australians and of Ausiralia as a whole.

As chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to increase the ILC’s impact,
influence, effectiveness and reach. | am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the
Gap and of the scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous
Australians. | believe the ILC and IBA need to embrace a business model based on
growth, commercial sustainability and collaboration across the Australian community
(including mobilising greater private-sector interest and investment),

The new ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage maore fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across [ts various activities. We will learn from
the past and move on. The ILC was established to benefit Indigenous Australians and
that is what I will ask my fellow Board members to focus on because Indigencus
people across Australia depend on what we do, and how well we do it.

Finally, 1 would like to thank the former Board in blace during the 2014-15 financial
year, including the Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey. We will build on their good work.

Eddie Fry
Chair




" DOCUMENT 9A







Petty, Barry

From: McFadyen, Denise

Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2016 2:32 PM

To: Kemble, Alice

Subject: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) (2) (2) (3} (4) (3) (3).docx
Attachments: Board paper - Consideration of AR - Draft (2) (2) (2) (2) (3} (4) (3} (3).docx

I made some changes to the paper itself —mainly style, not substénce, and ! have included a draft foreword. D







V¢ Australian Government

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Purpose

To seek the Board’s consideration of a revised foreword to the ILC Annual Report
2014-15.

Recommendation:

That the Board:

. Agrees the draft Chairman’s foreword at Attachment A and to retransmit the ILC
Annual Report 2014-15 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs.

Background

The ILCis required to submit an annual report and have it tabled in Parliament. The
report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 was transmitted to the Minister on
21 September 2015 by former Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been
subject to ministerial review prior to tabling. The Minister is required to table the -
report for Parliament’s consideration with 15 sitting days. More than 15 sitting.days
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
agree to table the ILC Annual Report 2014—15 in its current form, because the Minister
believes there are inaccuracies in Dr Casey’s overarching report on the performance of
the ILC which forms a ‘foreword’ to the report. This text is at Attachment A.

[t is understood that the Minister’s concerns centre on references to the Government’s
position on the need for an independent public inquiry into the purchase of the Ayers
Rock Resort (ARR), an inquiry that was strongly advocated by the former ILC Board.
The Minister’s Office would like the matter settled quickly so-the report can be tabled

ahead of Senate Estimates on 18 February 2016.

The Chairperson is keen for the ILC to establish a strong and positive relationship with
the Minister, so as to support favourable consideration of issues essential to the ILC’s




future, including negotiating legislative change to enable the capital balance of the
Land Account to grow and increase annual returns to the ILC, developing an agreed
approach to refinancing the debt on Ayers Rock Resort, and above all deiivering the
best outcomes for Indigenous Australians and the Indigenous estate, It is in this
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
Legal, Policy and Financial Compliiance

This paper has been quality assured by the Legal, Policy and Finance sections, and
. matters raised during the quality assurance process have been resolved. The decision

sheet has been cleared by the ILC Legal Section.

Recommendation

That the Board: :
® Agrees the draft foreword at Attachment B and to retransmit the ILC Annual

Report 2014-15 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs.

:repared by: Approved by:
Leo Bator
January 2016 A/g Chief Executive Officer
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
achievements of the ILC's land acquisition and land management programs and of its
three subsidiaries, Voyages indigenous Tourism Australia, National Indigenous Pastoral
Enterprises (NIPE) and the National Centre of Indigenous Excellence over the 2014-15 .

financial year.

The ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting next month for an in-depth

“discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be setting of our
- approach to delivering the ILC’s functions in an environment where demands on ILC
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
remit) to Government policy priorities. -

We also need to work with Government to forge a common approach to two particular
issues of concern to the-Board.

The first is refinancing, in the first half of this year, a substantial part of the debt
incurred through the ILC’s purchase of Ayers Rock Resort. We are seeking an option
that minimises the ILC's interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources
for its programs and to support the outstanding Indigenous job-creation outcomes at
the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers Rock Resort added a significant asset to the
Indigenous estate and on country that has profound Indigenous connections.

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Land Account, whose revenues fund the ILC’s operations, are generally inadequate to
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
on indigenous Land Administration and Use. | look forward to discussing with the
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
commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC is seeking to build the Indigenous presence jn the
horthern cattle industry giving Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and

influence.

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on Indigenous
land is essential to northern development, in light of the extent of Indigenous land
ownership across a complex array of tities. The ILC Board will go on mobilising the
corporation’s considerable expertise in fostering economic development on
Indigensus-held land, recognising that economic benefits are most effectively realised
when the other benefits specified in our legislation—environmental, social and
cultural—are also realised. As the ILC has demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote
Australia are well placed to earn income from unconventional and innovative sources,
“including ecosystem services, carbon farming and water management.

I am very excited by the prospects | see for the ILC, working in tandem with the other
Australian Government agency that | chair, Indigenous Business Australia (IBA). am
committed to building and leveraging the two agencies’ combined asset base for the
benefit of Indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole,

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

Finally, | would like to thank the former Board in place during the 201415 financial
year, including the Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey. We will build on their good work.




Eddie Fry
Chair

Xxx January 2016
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Australian Government

Indigenous Land Corporation -

BOARD BRIEFING PAPER )
BOARD MEETING No 197—18 January 2016

RECONSIDERATION OF ILC ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Purpose

To seek the Board’s consideration of a revised foreword to the JLC Annual Report 2014-15.

Recommendation
That the Board agrees the draft Chalrman’s foreword at Attachment A and to re-transmit the
ILC Annuai Report 2014-15 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs.

Background

The ILC is required to submit an annual report and have it tabled in Parliament. The report for
the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 was transmaitted to the Minister on 21 September 2015
by former Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, after which it has been subject to ministerial review
prior to tabling. The Minister is required to table the report for Parliament’s consideration
within 15 sitting days. More than 15 sitting days have passed since the report was transmitted.

Issues

The Office of the Minister for Indigenous Affalrs, Senator the Hon Nigel Sc’uiféon, has advised

the ILC’s acting Chief Executlve Officer that the Minister will not agree to table the ILC Annual
Report 2014-15 in its current form, because the Minister believes there are Inaccuracies in
Dr Casey's overarching report on the performance of the ILC which forms a ‘foreword’ fo the

report. This text Is at Attachment A,

It is understood that the Minister's concerns centre on references to the Government's
positlon on the need for an independent public inquiry into the purchase of the Ayers Rock
Resort {ARR), an inquiry that was strongly advocated by the former EC Board. The Minister's
Office would like the matter settled guickly so the repott can be tabled ahead of Senate

Estimates on 18 February 2016,

o estahlish a strong and positive relationship with the Minister,

The Chair is keen for the ILC t
ancing the debt on Ayers Rock Resort, and

s0 as to support favourable consideration of refin
into the future, negotiate legislative change to enable the capital balance of the Land Account

to grow and increase annual returns to the ILC, and above all, deliver the best outcomes for

indigenous Australians and the indigenous estate. It is in this context that the Minister’s

request could be considered.




It would not be appropriate to remove those parts of the former Chairperson’s report that the
Minister considers inaccurate, given the Chairperson’s foreword was signed by Dr Casey :and

her signature would remain on the altered document.

An alternative, preferred option would be to replace the foreword in its entirety, This option
~ would ameliorate the Minister’s concerns and facilitate the tabling of the Annual Report. It
would also provide an opportunity for the new Chair and Board to set out their aspirations for

the IL.C. A draft replacement foreword is at Attachment B,

Notwithstanding the positive approach reflected in the new Chalr’s foreword, any significant
amendment to the draft annual report is likely to be noticed by members of the former Board

and could result In public questioning, including at Senate Estimates.

Legal, Policy and Financlal Compliance

This paper has been 'quality assured by the Legal, Policy and Finance sections, and matters
raised during the quality assurance process have been resolved.

Recommendation

That the Board agrees the draft foreword at Attachment B and to re-transmit the ILC Annual
Report 2014-15 to the Minister for Indigenous Affairs.

LEO BATOR
Acting Chlef Executive Qfificer

13 January 2016




Australian Government
Indigenous Land Corporation

Board in Confidence

BOARD DECISION
Neclsion No
BOARD MEETING No: 197
VEETING DATE: ' 18 January 2016
BRIEFING PAPER: Reconsideration of the ILC 2014-15 Annual Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JNDIGENOUS LAND CORPORATION:

i, Notes the briefing paper entitled Reconsideration of the ILC 2014-15 Annual Report and its

attachments.

nual Report 2014-15 the Chairman’s Eoreword provided at

2. Agrees to include in the ILC An
Attachment A to the briefing paper.
ffairs.

3, Agrees to re-transmit the ILC Annual Report 2014-15 t0 the Minister for Indigenous A

.............................................................. Date: 18.01.16

SIGNED, Edward Fry, Chair
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ATTACHMENT B
Draft ‘foreword’ from ILC Chalrperson, Mr Eddie Fry

(ILC) was set up in 1995 to provide land-related benefits to

The Indigenous Land Corporation
indigenous Australians, This report provides ample evidence of the achievements of the ILC's

land acquisition and land management programs and of Its three subsidiarles, Voyages
Indigenous Tourlsm Australia, National Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises (NIPE} and the National

Centre of Indigenous Excellence aver the 2014-15 financial year.

The ILC Board appointed in October 2015 will be meeting in February 2016 for an in-depth
discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be setting our approach
to delivering the ILC's functiens In an environment where demands on ILC services are
increasing, the Indigenous population Is growing and an agricuitural boom is on our doorstep.

open and productive relationship with the

We have already established the basis of a new,
{within our legislative remit) to

Australian Government and will be providing strong support
Government policy priorities.

\We also need to work with Government to forge a common approach to two particular issues

of concern to the Board,

The first is refinancing, in the first half of 2016, a substantial part of the debt incurred through
the ILC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resort. We are seeking an option that minimises the ILC's
interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources for its programs and to suppori
the outstanding Indigenous job-creation outcomes at the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers
Rock Resort added a significant asset to the Indigenous estate and on country that has

profound Indigenous connections.

A second major concern for Directors is that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
lslander Land Account, whose revenues fund the ILC’s operations, are generally inadequate to
meet the demands being made on the corporation, Indeed, the leglislated requirerhent to
provide a minimum level of annual funding to the ILC could see the Land Account's capital
balance decrease based on current returns from the allowable investments of the tand
Account, Meanwhile, the Indigenous population is growing at an estimated 2.3 per cent per
annum, and the [ndigenous estate is expanding—it covers around 40 per cent of the Australian
land mass according to the December 2015 Report to COAG on Indigenous Land Administration
and Use, t look forward to discussing with the Minister for Indigenous Affairs and the Minister
for Finance a strategic approach to achieving a higher rate of return from the Land Account,

bhenchmarked to the Future Fund.

Increases in revenue fo the ILG, hoth from the land Account and from our three subsidiaries,
are essential given the Board’s desire to play a greater role in supporting the Government’s
Indigenous and broader pollcy agendas. The |L.C already delivers strongly on the Government’s
Closing the Gap priotity of ‘getting adults into worl’; it is a major provider of training-to-
employment programs, aespecially in remote Australia, and around one third of total 11.C staft

are Indigenous people.




The Government is prioritising the development of northern Australia where ILC subsidiary
NIPE operates an extensive cattle business across 13 properties. The White Paper on
Developing Northern Australla, released in June 2015, highlights the opportunities available to
such agribusinesses, given northern Australia’s proximity o growing Asian markets, Through
its commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC is seeking to build the Indigenous presence i the
nerthern cattle industry giving Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and influence.

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on Indigenous land is
essential to northern development, in fight of the extent of Indigenous land ownership across @
complex array of titles, The ILC Board will go on meabilising the corporation’s considerable
expertise In fostering economic development on Indigenous-held land, recognising that
economic benefits are most effectively realised when the other benefits specified in our
legislation-—environmental, social and cultural—are also realised. As the ILC has
demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote Australia are well placed to earn income from
unconventional and innovative sources, including ecosystem services, carbon farming and

water management.

| am very excited by the prospects 1 see for the ILC, working in tandem with the other
Australian Government agency that | chair, Indigenous Business Australia {IBA}, 1 am
" committed to building and leveraging the two agencies’ combined asset base for the benefit of

indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole.

As Chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to increase the ILC's impact, influence,
effectiveness and reach. | am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the Gap and of the
scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous Australians. 1 befieve the {1C
and IBA need to embrace a business model based on growth, commercial sustainability and
collaboration across the Australian community (including mobilising greater private-sector

interest and investment).

The new ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an
exemplar of best practice and process across is various activities. We will learn from the past
and move on. The ILC was established to benefit Indigenous Australians and that is what | will
ask my fellow Board members to focus on because Indigenous people across Australia depend

oh what we do, and how well we do it.

Finally, | would like to thank the former Board in place during the 2014-15 financial year,
including the Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, We will build on their good work.

Eddie Fry
Chair




[ Would like to thank my fellow Board members, and
“the ILC's hard-working Board committees, for their
;onsidered datiberations and commifment over the
last year, and in pravious years. | would also like to
thank the management and staff of the ILC and its
subsidiary comnpantes who madle great efforts this
year to advance the Board's.priorities, Including
: better governance, accelerated grant of properties
. -and putting In-place new ways of working with
“Andigenous land owners, | - L

'he LG began operations on 1 June 1995 and
celebrating lts 20th anniversary in 2015, This -*
hiversary has served to shine.a styong light on the
origins of the ILC and of the Aboriginal and Torres
{rait slander Fand.Account (the Land Account)
whose feyenues fund the ILC's land acquisition and
 Jand management programmes. The ILC and Land
Accountwere legislated together, Initally in 1995, as
“partiafithe complex political settlement negotiated
: between the then Australian Government and
ndigénous leaders after the Mabo judgment
acognised native title fo fand in June 1992, They
' o provide some compensation for

digenovs egéles')&\;(c_!gg,pread;iosg;bf.;l'a_nd. The -
ecognition of native title and subsequent legislation . -
of the Native Tjile Act 1993 were going to benefit ™
digenous groups, Ut would not-reverse the, -
f Indigenous dispossession crossthe.,” -
reas. of Australi Do g

ntinuing rising trend in native title
larging ':t,hgﬁl_n__digg[lgu's ‘estate that

‘of the-continent, the L
nalcountry .7 .
rafia, s S

ation into Indjgenous fand a

e, advised by an appointed Expertindigenous

“In iay 2015 the Australian Human .
nmissi :ﬂSQﬁ‘.{ﬁ%d_&_;puhdtable in

1A, onindigénous economic development

andipropetty fights attended by senior Indigenous .
leaders including uty Chalrpérson, " '

5015 the Ausalian Law Reform. =

AL'{%C-) fge_!g-:}aseci Gonnection to. Country, . g

Gommissioni{ €

it __tgpieyygf{tji_n_efi\faﬁyeﬂﬂe.gc; 1993, The ALRC's |

copmendationsnclulledhe niced forstatutory
ise'that native title ri_g_ht;:_include the

£c0Y

6 ANNUAL REPORT | 2014 -2015







ROEBUCK PLAINS STATION 4

apFreoped Eogutigar g pensle
Station to Yawury Traditional O

ANNUAL REPORT | 2014 -2015 7







the emergmg lndlgenous carbon economy The ILC! S {.commlttmg $3 19 m;lhon through the lndlgenous I :
\ Merepah Fire Pro;ects inthe Northern . Advancement Strategy, over 12.months from . - E
'ens;land are, 1nformmg the '.February 201510 provrde more than 300 Indigenous

: will _be dellvered by NIPE, Voyages and :
Merziman Shearing School .near

Brewarrina, _NéW NIPE arid Voyages can provide
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Talking points for Eddie Fry.docx

Over to you — 1 think | included all the points. b
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Talking pcints‘for Eddie Fry, Board meeting

The ILC is at an impasse with the Minister—an impasse that we cannot allow to continue,
You have a paper before you about reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 2014-15.

The Minister is of the firm belief that certain matters set out in the foreword sighed by the former
Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, are inaccurate. He will not consent.totable the report while these

inaccuracies stand,

former Board's call for an

{ understand the inaccuracles relate to the sequence

independent public inquiry Into the ILC's purchase ofAye Rock Resort.

The paper you have proposes that the foreword toth
replaced by a new foreword from me, looking to the fiitlre.

trther thoughts'@

course would be to remove Dr Casey's forewor

a's.office on this matter. We have
ing my writing a letter—to be made public at the
ork closely with the Government,

aterial that the Minlister objects to.

Lo remove all of the material written hy Dr Casey In order that the

This is why | am now Droposing tha
. report can be tabled,

As you must be aware, over the'last couple of years the ILC has had a strained relationship with the

Minister—to its detriment.

[ see one of my jobs as repaiting this relationship. It is imperative that we repair this relationship. -

We are currently in delicate negotiations with the Government on matters that are crucial to the ILC’s
ilding a hetter future for Indigenous Australians—namely, an option to

having the resources to go on bu
debt and coming up with legislative

minimise Interest payments on refinancing the Ayers Rack Resort
proposals that will enable the capital base of the Land Account to grow.




There are also aspects of Dr Casey’s foreword to the annual report that | am unhappy with—including
her bid to dictate the actions of this Board. Her matetial ranges beyond the year directly under review.

If we do not make a decision to remove Dr Casey’s foreword, the ILC will be faced with an
unprecedented situation—to not have an annual report tabled for the 2014~15 year.

| also understand there is no legal requirement to include this materlal,

I ask that you agree with me on this matter, so we can putithe past behind us and look to the ILC’s.
future—and, beyond that, look to the future of the Indigenous Australians we serve,

T e e T e T e,

i
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ILC Annual Report — suggested talking points

You have a paper before you about reconsideration of the 1LC Annual Report 2014-15.

The Minister is of the firm belief that certain matters set out in the foreword signed by the former
Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, are inaccurate. He will not consent to table the report while these

inaccuracies stand.

o lunderstand the inaccuracies relate to the sequence of events around the former Board’s call for

an independent public inquiry into the ILC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resort.

| believe it is important that we resolve a way foreword to facilitate the publication of the Annual Report,

and today.

o | am determined to have a positive relatlo )
ILC and Indlgenous Australians.

ith the Governiment for the best interests of the

ihg some of the claims made by the

- I had previously proposed that | could write to the Minister |
a strong and positive relationship with the

former Chairperson in the foreword and:c itment the !L

the safrie time as the tabling of the Annual

Report, demonst,__f:tmg' that the 1LC is now mmltted toa trong and positive future.

- However, the Minister was not Sa i
".:reword ‘

/ith this approach and sought a full repudiation of the claims

made in the_.

f think it wouid"npt be approp'ri:éte‘_for me to repudiate directly what the former Chairperson has written,

nor do | think it .is‘"pqs.sible.

""" option tjust remove the material that the Minister objects to.

The option before us recomnﬁ'é‘hdé that the foreword to the report signed by the former Chairperson be

replaced by a new foreword from me, looking to the future.

An alternative option is that the current foreword is removed without inserting new text from me.

| helieve this would be the neatest, and—I would have thought—least offensive course.

- | do not think it would be appropriate for me to replace the foreword as | would be commenting on a

period of time that does not relate to my tenure.




| understand that Leo has sought legal advice and whilst a foreword to an annual report is generally
considered to be good governance practice, there are no legal requirements for one.

Under this option, the IVIlmster and the ILC will likely still be cailed to account for the removal of Dr Casey’s

foreword,

However, it is my view that Dr Casey’s foreword goes beyond an appropriate scope for a foreword —
discussing matters outside of the period the Annual Report covers and calls on a new Board and Chair to
continue to pursue work that it has yet to consider and reach an independent view on.

| believe that should we propose to the Minister to remove the clrrent foreword, it would facilitate its

tabling ahead of Senate Estimates.

As you must be aware, over the last couple of years th . I:,LC has had a 's:";_l_‘g,i‘ned relationship with the

Minister—to its detriment.

| see one of my jobs as repairing this relationship. It is ‘mperativ,é_’;’ghat we repaiFij‘th‘i;;; relationship.

| ask that you agl*?ég'_'w,ith me on tﬁfé;'matter, /é'c")"we can put the past behind us and look to the ILC's future—
and, heyond that, Id'c:illéit_‘p_'the futuré=___fc"__i,‘1.c the Indigenous Australians we serve.
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Petty, Barry

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

McFadyen, Denise

Monday, 18 January 2016 10:41 AM
Kemble, Alice

Doc12.docx

" Doc12.docx

Great — one small correction, but otherwise fine.







ILC Annual Report — suggested talking points

- You have a paper before you about reconsideration of the ILC Annual Report 2014-15.

The Minister is of the firm belief that certain matters set out in the foreword signed by the former
Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, are inaccurate. He will not consent to table the report while these

inaccuracies stand.

o | understand the inaccuracies relate to the sequence of events around the former Board's call for
an independent public inquiry into the ILC’s purchase of Ayers Rock Resart.

- | believe it is important that we resolve a way foreword to facjlitate the publication of the Annual Report,

and today.

o 1am determined to have a positive relationship with the Govern "j'_:e__lrrt for the best interests of the

ILC and Indigenous Australians.

- lhad pre\nous!y proposed that | could write to the Mlnlst- ir.ref g some of the claims made by the

former Chairperson in the foreword an: commitment theilCtoa strong and positive relationship with the

he same time as the tabling of the Annual
-strong and positive future.

However, the Minister was not sa’usﬂed wrth thls appr fach and sought a full repudiation of the claims

made in the foreword

I think it would not be approprrate for me to repudrate directly what the former Chairperson has written,

nor do [ think it is possrble

The option before us recomméﬁd‘s‘ :that the foreword to the report signed by the former Chairperson be

replaced by a new foreword from me, looking to the future.

An alternative option is that the current foreword is removed without inserting new text from me.
| believe this would be the neatest, and—I-would have thought—least offensive course.

[ do not think it would be appropriate for me to replace the foreword as | would be commenting on 2

period of time that does not relate to my tenure.




I understand that Leo has sought legal advice and whilst a foreword to an annual report is generally
considered to be good governance practice, there are no legal requirements for one.

Under this option, the Minister and the ILC will likely still be called to account for the removal of Dr Casey’s

foreword.

However, it is my view that Dr Casey’s foreword goes beyond an appropriate scope for a foreword —
discussing matters outside of the period the Annual Report covers and calls on a new Board and Chair to
continue to pursue work that it has yet to consider and reach an independent view on.

| believe that should we propose to the Minister to remove the‘:cﬁjr‘reht foreword, it would facilitate its

tabling ahead of Senate Estimates.

As you must be aware, over the last couple of years theILC has had a St'ralined relationship with the

Minister—to its detriment.

I see one of my jobs as repairing this relationship. It iézi;mperatiyi?'_that we repair this relationship.

- The Government is already showing goo _,_‘:__lth in our new relatlonshlp

option to mlmmlse mterest payments on refrnancmg the Ayers Rock Resort debt and coming up
with leglslatwe proposals that W|EI enab[e the capltal base of the La nd Account to grow.

and, beyond that, Iook 1o the future of the Indfgenous Australians we serve,
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Petty, Barry

From: * Kembls, Alice

Sent: Monday, 18 January 2016 12:35 PM
To: Gumley, Kate

Subject: FW: suggested AR TPs.docx
Attachments: suggested AR TPs.docx -

foreword and with no

FY! —the Chair would like to propose an alternative, that Is to remove the
s to speak to it at the meeting.

replacement, Leo asked for some talking points for the Chair reflecting thi
Will text you if | get any advice on the outcomes. :

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: Monday, 18 January 2016 11:16 AM
To: Bator, Leo

Subject: suggested AR TPs.docx

Hi Leo

As discussed, suggested talking polnts for the Chair,
Happy to make any changes you heed.

Alice







ILC Annual Report — suggested talking points

- You have a papet before you about recohsideration of the ILC Annual Report 201415,

reword signed by the former

The Minister is of the firm belief that certain matters set out In the fo
ble the report while these

Chairperson, Dr Dawn Casey, are inaccurate. He will not consent to ta

inaccuracies stand.

‘o tunderstand the inaccuracles relate to the sequence of events around the former Board’s call for
an mdependent public Inquiry into the {LC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resort.

- | believe it is important that we resolve a way fqreword to fagl the publication of the Annual Report,

and today.

o tam determined to have a positive relation
[LC and Indigenous Australfans.

| had previously proposed thatl could write o the Minis ef.rg]
“'mltment the I a a strong and posttive relationship with the

- | also do not believe it is:=af option t f"ust remove the material that the Minister objects to.

-~ The option before us recommengs that the foreword to the report signed by the former Chairperson be

replaced by a new foreword from me, looking to the future.
w fext

- Analternative option however is that the current foreword is removed without Inserting ne

from me.

[ believe this would be the neatest, and—! would have thought—Ileast offensive course.

- 1do not think it woﬁld be appropriate for me 1o replace the foreword as | would be commenting ona

period of time that does not relate to my tenure.




| understand that Leo has sought legal advice and whilst a foreword to an annual report is generally
considered to be good governance practice, there are no legal requirements for one.

Under this option, the Minister and the ILC will likely still be called to account for the removal of Dr Casey's
foreword. : :
However, it is my view that Dr Casey’s foreword goes beyond an appropriate scope for a foreword —

discussing matters outside of the period the Annual Report covers and calls on a new Board and Chair to
continue to pursue work that it has yet to consider and reach an independent view on.

o And | believe they are sound reasans for its remov,

] ask that you agree with mé-ohihis’matter, so we can put the past behind us and look to the ILC's future—

and, beyond that, look to the futu}e of the Indigenous Australians we serve.
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Petty, Barty

From: Kemble, Allce

Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 2:57 PM

To: Kemble, Alice

Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting.doc
Attachments: CHAIRPERSON to Ministert8 Jan Board meeting.doc

From: Kemble, Alice
Sent: Tuesday, 19 January 2016 12:42 PM

To: Lowe, Sarah
Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting.doc

Here are some words that Denise put together if you would like,

From: McFadyen, benise '
Sent: Monday, 18 January 2016 4147 PM

To: Kemble, Alice
Subject: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting.doc

Draft for your review, D
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N Australian Government
Indigenous Land Corporation
January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for Indigenous Affairs
Parliament House

Canbertra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

[ am writing to inform you that the ILC Board met on 18 January by teleconference to discuss

a number of matters.

The primary focus of the meeting was on arrangements for refinancing the Ayers Rock

Resort debt. As you know, the ILC has been exploring commercial refinancing options since
last year. It has also recently been in discussion with the Departments of Prime Minister and
Cabinet (PM&C) and Finance on development of an alternative refinancing option, with
Government suppott, that would minimise the ILC's interest-payment obligations.

While this wotk Is continuing, the ILC has proceeded, as nreviously advised, to negotlate and
finalise finance documents with external financiers. The Board considered delaying finalising
these documents; however, there is an expiry date on the ANZ offer and executing the key
finance documents does not force the ILC or its subsidiary Voyages Indigenous Tourism
Australia to proceed with the refinance should an alternative Government solution be
forthcoming before 19 April 2016. The 1LC has informed the prospective lenders that an
alternative source of financing is being sought. If we do not proceed to refinance with
external financiers, we will be able to exit the arrangement with minimal cost.

The Board also considered matters in relation to public positions taken by the previous

Board.

The ILC Board took a decision to reverse the previous Board’s position on the need for an
independent public inqulry into the ILC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resort. The resort is an
outstanding addition to the Indigenous estate, and we are committed to working to

naximise revenue and Indigenous benefits from the resort.

The Board also made a decision to cease any advocacy in refation to the Aboriginal and
Torres Strait [slander Amendment {A Stronger Land Account) Bili 2014. The Senate

Community Affairs Leglslation Committee Inquired Into the Bill In 2014-15 and the
committee’s majority report {encompassing hoth Government and Opposition Senators) dlld

JR——Y R S e I

Office of the Chalrperson « PO Box 586, Curtin ACT 2605 ' ‘
Fraacall 1800 818 490 Telephone (02) 6269 2500 Facsimile (02) 6285 4300 WY, %lc.!__}()v.ai..l




not support legislation of the Bill. Our view Is that it is unlikely to be adopted by Parliament.
Instead, Directors decided to focus our efforts on developing proposals for legislative change
that would enable the capital balance of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Land
Account to grow so that more revenue is available for core ILC functions. There have_aiready
been discussions with Government on this matter and we look forward to continuing these.

The Board also reconsidered the ILC Annual Report 201415, Though this matter was not
resolved before the meeting closed, Directors were generally unwilling to change the report
transmitted under the former Board. The Acting IL.C CEO, Mr Leo Bator, and | will continue
our separate discussions with your office in an effort to bring this matter to a mutually

satisfactory conclusion.

Yours sincerely

Eddie Fry
Chairperson

Office of the Chairperson « PO Box 586, Curtin ACT 2605 : ‘ .
Freecall 1800 818 490 Telephone (02) 6269 2500 Facsimile (02) 6285 4300 WA f L3OV all
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Petty, Bat;ry

From: Gumley, Kata

Sent: - Thursday, 21 January 2016 8:43 AM

To: : Andrews, Sue

Cc: Lindsay, Jodie; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denige

Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2} {3).doc
CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board mesting (2) {3).doc :

Attachments:

Sue please use this version
Jodie see slight change from would be prudent to is prudent

Kate Gumley
Executive Director, Strategy
indigenous Land Corporation

Redacted s 47F

w: Weww.flc.gov.au
From: Kemble, A!ice. '
Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 8:42 AM

To: Andrews, Sue
Cc: Gumley, Kate; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise
Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

HiSue

Are you able to please do a final OA onthe attached draft letter?

Thanks and happy to discuss.

Alice o _ :

From: Fiedler, Beth ‘
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2016 7:08 PM

To: Kemble, Alice _
Subject: RE: CHAIRPERSON fo Minlster1.8 Jan Board meeting (2) {(3).doc
ugh not being at the meeting { can’t comment on

Hi Alice — thanks for preparing this. It generally looks fine altho
declsion to purstie an inquiry. Might be wise 1o ask

whether the board decision was to reverse the previous boards
Sue to check to the draft minutes as well as doing a QA check.

Thanks
Bath

From: Kemble, Alice
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2016 3:44 PM

w2 Ly

To: Fiedler, Beth
Cc; Lindsay, Jodie; Gumiley,
Subject: CHAIRPERSON to

Kate; Nguyen, Tri; Lowe, Sarah
Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

Hi Beth




Please see attached draft letter for your consideration, following the recent Board meeting.

Kate and Jodie have both provided input and the last paragraph is still subject to some final polishing
depending on where things may land.

Happy to make any_changes you may need over the phone if that is easier.

Thanks

Alice
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Australian Government
e

Indigenous Land Corporation

DRAFT

January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for Indigenous Affairs
Parliament House '
Canberra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

[ am writing to inform you that the ILC Board met on 18 January 2016 by teleconference to

discuss a number of matters.

refinancing the Ayers Rock Resort debt. As you know,
the ILC has been exploring commercial refinancing options since December 2014, it has also
recently been in discussion with the Departments of Prime Minister and Cabinet (PM&C),
Finance and Treasury on development of an alternative refinancing option that, with
Government support, would minimise the ILC's interest-payment obligatlons.

The primary focus of the meeting was

As previously advised, the ILC has been progressing refinancing arrangements with the ILC's
existing financiers, ANZ and GPT. At its October 2015 meeting the Board formally accepted
refinancing offers from both parties, with finalisation of the arrangements subject to the
preparation and executlon of legal documentation by 19 January 2016 (being expiration of
ANZ's offer). This course of action was endorsed at the first meeting of the new Board In
November 2015. This work has now been completed and the Board authorised the
execution of the required legal documentation at its 18 lanuary meeting.

The Board considered the risks of delaying finalising of these documents, however as there is

an éxpiry date on the ANZ offer, given the approaching maturity of the GPT facility {May

2016), and an alternative option with Government support is still under development,; it is

the Board’s firm view that it wesld-beis prudent to proceed to finalise and execute legal
documentation with ANZ and GPT for the commercial refinancing of the ARR debt to avoid

any risk of default.

It is noted that executing the documents does not oblige the ILC or its substdiary, Yoyages

Indigenous Tourism Australia, to proceed with thase refinancing arrangements should an
] alternative Government solution be achieved before 19 April 2016 and - the ILC has been
careful to ensure that we will be able to exit the arrangement at minimal cost if we do

proceed with this refinancing option.

e et g e AT A R AT ety T e R S ST --.._m._._..ﬁH_“.m-..-..._.....-.-._.....wgwﬂ.w—.u,,g_—.r..“,.W..—,«.,.--m-‘._.",_.u-—-.
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At the meeting, the Board also considered matters in relation to public positions taken by
the previous Board.

The ILC Board took a decision to reverse the previous Board’s position on the need for an
independent public inquiry into the ILC’s purchase of Ayers Rock Resort, The resortis an
outstanding addition to the Indigenous estate, and we are committed to workmg to
maximise revenue and Indigencus benefits from the resort.

The Board also decided to cease the ILC’s advocacy for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait’
islander Amendment (A Stronger Land Account) Bill 2014, The:Senate Community Affairs
Legislation Committee inquired into the Bill in 201415 and:the"committee’s majority report
(encompassing both Government and Opposition Senatg id not support enaciment of

the Bill. The Board's view s that it is unlikely o be ad@pt; arliament. Instead, Directors
decided to focus our efforts on developing proposals for legislative change that would

enable the capital balance of the Aboriginal and:d6ires Strait Islahggr Land Account to grow
so that more revenue is available for core I;giftinctions. There have alfgady been discussions -

with Government on this matter and we look rd to continuing th

57 Directors were senerally

nnual Report20% i
son, Dr Casey, and supported

The Board also reconsidered the Il 3

Eddie Fry
Chairperson

Of fice of the Chairperson PO Box 586, Curtin ACT 2605

Fraocall 1800 818 490 Talephone (02) 6269 2500 Facsmile (02) 6285 4300 Wil L0ov.all
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Petty, Barry

From1: Gumley, Kate

Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 10:09 AM

To: Bator, Leo

Cc: Fiedler, Beth; Lindsay, Jodie; Nguyen, Tri; Andrews, Sue; Lowe, Sarah
Subject: FW: GHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc
Attachments: GHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2} (3).doc

Leo

Here is the letter on significant matters arising from the Board meeting for your consideration. 1t has been jointly
prepared with Beth's team '

thanlcs

Kate Gumley
Executive Director, Strategy
Indigenous Land Corporation

Redacted s 47F

w; www.ilc.gov.au
From: Andrews, Sue

Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 9:27 AM
To: Gumley, Kate; Lindsay, Jodie; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise; Kemble, Alice

Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

Kate

A couple of very minor changes
Cheers

Sue

From: Gumley, Kate '
Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 9:13 AM

To: Andrews, Sue
Cc: Lindsay, Jodie; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise
Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

Sue please use this version
Jodie see slight change from would be prudent to is prudent

Kate Gumley
Exectitive Director, Strategy
Indigenous Land Corporation

Redacted s 47F

wowww.ilc.gov.all

From: Kemble, Alice

Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 8:42 AM
To: Andrews, Sue




Cc: Gumiey, Kate; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise
Suhject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting {2) (3).doc

Hi Sue

Are you able to please do a final QA on the attached draft [etter?
Thanks and happy to discuss,

-Alice

From Fiedfer, Beth
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2016 7:08 PM

- To: Kemble, Alice
Subject: RE: CHAIRPERSON to Ministeri8 Jan Board meeting (2) {3}.doc

Hi Alice — thanks for preparing this. It generally looks fine although not being at the meeting | can’t commenton
whethet the board decision was to reverse the previous boards declsion to pursue an inquiry. Might be wise to ask

Sue to check to the draft minutes as well as doing a QA check.

Thanks
Beth

From: Kemble, f\lfﬁé
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2016 3:44 PM

To: Fiedler, Beth :
Cc: Lindsay, Jodie; Gumley, Kate; Nguyen, Tti; Lowe, Sarah
Subject: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3}.doc

Hi Beth

‘Please see attached drafi letter for your consideration, following the recent Board meeting.

. Kate and Jodie have both provided input and the last paragraph is still subject to some final polishing
depending on where things may land.

Happy to make any changes you may need over the phone if that is easier.
Thanks

Alice
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Australian Government
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DRAFT
January 20106

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for indigenous Affairs
Parliament House

CANBERRA ACT 2600

Dear Minister

[ am writing to inform you that the ILC Board met on 18 January 2016 by teleconference to -
discuss a number of matters, ' :

The primary focus of the meeting was refinancing the Ayers Rock Resort debt, As you know,

the ILC has been exploring commerclal refinancing options since December 2014, it has also
recently been in discussion with the Depariments of Prime Minister and Cahinet (PM&C),
Finance and the Treasury on development of an alternative refinancing option that, with
Government support, would minimise the ILC’s interest-payment obligations.

As previously advised, the ILC has been progressing refinancing arrangements with the ILC's
existing financiers, ANZ and GPT. At its October 2015 meeting the Board formaily accepted
refinancing offers from hoth parties, with finalisation of the arrangements subject to the
preparation and execution of Jegal docurnentation by 19 January 2016 {being expiration of
ANZ’s offer). This course of actlon was andorsed at the first meeting of the new Board In
November 2015, This work has now been completed and the Board authorised the execution

of the required legal documentation at its 18 January meeting.

The Board considered the risks of delaying finalising of these documents, but as there isan
explry date on the ANZ offer and given the approaching maturity of the GPT facility (May
2016), and an alternative optlon with Government support is still under development, itis the
Board’s firm view that it is prudent to proceed to finalise and execute legal documentation
with ANZ and GPT for the commercial refinancing of the ARR debt fo avold any risk of default.

it is noted that executing the documents does not oblige the ILC or its subsidiary, Voyages
to proceed with these refinancing arrangements should an

o before 19 April 2016 and the ILC has been
we do proceed

indigenous Tourism Australia,
alternative Government solution be achieve
careful to ensure that we will be able to exit the arrangement at minimal cost if

with this refinancing option.
At the meeting, the Board also considered matters in relation to public positions taken by the
previous Board.

—E T

e e e armm e s o p it e e R R S
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The ILC Board took a decision to reverse the previous Board's position on the need for an
independent public inquiry into the ILC’s purchase of Ayers Rock Resart. The resort fsan
outstanding addition to the Indigenous estate, and we are committed to working to maximise

revenue and Indigenous benefits from the resort,

The Board also decided to cease the ILC’s advocacy for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait islander
Amendment {A Stronger Land Account) Bill 2014, The Senate Comm unity Affairs Legislation
Committee inquired into the Bill in 2014/15 and the Committee’s majority report
{encompassing both Government and Opposition Senators) did not support enactment of the
Bill, The Board's view is that it is unlikely to be adopted by Parliament. Instead, Directors
decided to focus our efforts on developing proposals for legislatiye change that would enable
' the capital balance of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islandg A:and Account to grow so that
) more revenue is available for core ILC functions. There ha ready been discussions with

unwllling to change the foreword by the prev]
including an additional statement in the Anii

the Government to achleve positive outcomes for
separately to provide the full docyfiient with the ne

Yours sincerely

Eddie Fry
Chairpg

Dffice of the Chairperson » PO Box 586, Curtin ACT 2605
Freacall 1800 818 490 Telephone (02) 6269 2500 Facsimile (02) 6285 4300 WA HC GOv.Atl-
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Petty, Barry

From: : Gumley, Kate

Sent. Thursday, 21 January 2016 10:15 AM

To: Rator, Leo .

Ce: . Lindsay, Jodie; Lowe, Sarah; McFacdyen, Denise; Kemble, Alice; Andrews, Sue, Fiedlat,
: Beth

Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) {3).doc

Attachments: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

Lep

Revised as discussed. Will you send to the Chair for signature?

EY1 for others, we have changed the paraon LA to be ‘working with G
LA

Kate Gumley
Executive Director, Strategy
Indigencus Land Caorporation

Redacted s 47F

W www.lc.gov.au

From: Andrews, Sue
Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 9:27 AM
To: Gumiley, Kate; Lindsay, Jodie; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise; Kemble, Alice

Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

Kate

A couple of very minor changes
Cheers

Sue

From; Gumiey, Kate |
Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 9:13 AM

To: Andrews, Sue
Cc: Lindsay, Jodie; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise
Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON fo Ministeri8 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

Sue please use this version
Jodie see slight change from would be prudentto is prudent

Kate Gumley
Exectitive Director, Strategy
Indigenous Land Gorporation

Redacted s 47F

wi www,llc.gov.au

From: Kemble, Alice
Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 8:42 AM

overnment on the development of options for




To: Andrews, Sue
Cc: Gumley, Kate; Lowe, Sarah; McFadyen, Denise
Subject: FW: CHAIRPERSON to Ministeri8 Jan Board meeting (2) (3').doc

Hi Sue

Are you able to please do a final QA on the attached draft letter?

Thanls and happy to discuss,

Alice

From, Fledler, Beth
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2016 7:08 PM

To: Kemble, Afice
. Suhject: RE: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meetmg (2) (3). doc

Hi Alice —thanks for preparing this. It generally looks fine although not being at the meeting  can’t comm‘ent on
whether the board decision was to reverse the previous boards decision to pursue an inquiry. Might be wise to ask

Sue to check to the draft minutes as well as doing a QA check.

Thanks
Beth

St mm m s e e e

From- Kembfe, Itce

Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2016 3:44 PM

To: Fiedler, Beth

Cc: Lindsay, Jodie; Gumley, Kate; Nguyen, T, Lowe, Sarah
Subject: CHAIRPERSON to Minister18 Jan Board meeting (2) (3).doc

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

- DRAFT

January 2016

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion
Minister for Indigenous Affairs
Parliament House

CANBERRA ACT 2600

Dear Minister

I am writing to inform you that the ILC Board met on 18 January 2016 by teleconference to -

discuss a number of matters,

The primary focus of the meeting was refinancing the Ayers Rock Resort debt, As you know,
the ILC has been exploring commercial refinancing options since Decembet 2014, it has also
recently been in discussion with the Departments of Prime Minlstet and Cabinet (PM&C),
Finance and the Treasury on development of an alternative refinancing option that, with
Government support, would minimise the ILC's Interest-payment obligations. '

As previously advised, the ILC has been progressing refina ncing arrangements with the ILC's
existing financiers, ANZ and GPT. At its October 2015 meeting the Board formally accepted
refinancing offers from hoth partles, with flnalisation of the arrangements subject to the
preparation and execution of legal documentation by 19 fanuary 2016 {being expiration of
ANZ’s offer). This course of action was endorsed at the first meeting of the new Board In
November 2015. This work has now been completed and the Board authorised the execution
of the required legal documentation at its 18 January meeting.

The Board considered the risks of delaying finalising of these documents, but as there san
expiry date on the ANZ offer and given the approaching maturity of the GPT facility (May
2016), and an alternative optioh with Government support is still under development, it is the
‘Board’s firm view that it [s prudent to proceed to finalise and execute legal documentation
with ANZ and GPT for the commercial refinancing of the ARR debt to avoid any tisk of default,

1t is noted that executing the documents does not oblige the ILC or its subsidiary, Voyages
Indigenous Tourism Australia, to proceed with these refinancing arrangements should an
alternative Government solution be achieved before 19 April 2016 and the ILC has been
careful to ensure that we will be able to exit the arrangement at minimal cost if we do proceed

with this reflnancing option.

\E thé meeting, the Board also considered matters in relation to public positions taken by the

previous Board.

N——
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The ILC Board tock a decision to reverse the previous Board’s position on the need foran
independent public inquiry into the ILC’s purchase of Ayers Rock Resort. Theresort s an
outstanding addition 1o the Indigenous estate, and we are committed to working to maximise

revenue and Indigenous benefits from the resort,

The Board also decided to cease the ILC’s advocacy for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Istander
Amendment (A Stronger Land Account) Bill 2014. The Senate Community Affairs Legislation
Committee inquired into the Bill in 2014715 and the Committee’s majority report
{encompassing both Government and Opposition Senators} did not support enactment of the
Biil. The Board's view is that it Is unlikely to be adopted by Parliament. instead, Directors
decided to focus on working with Government on the development of proposals for legislative
change that would enable the capital balance of the Aboriginaliand Torres Strait Islander Land
Account to grow so that more revenue is available for c (nctions. There have already
been discussions with Gavernment on this matter and} k:forward to continuing these.

‘s.were generally

and supported

rent Chairperson.
rk closely with

The Board also reconsidered the ILC Annual Repor2014/15. Direc
unwlilling to change the foreword by the previ is:Chalrperson, Dr Case:
including an additional statement in the Anritigl:Report from me as the Gt
This outlines the current Board’s forward looking-focus and oy .mtentwn
the Government to achieve positive outcomes forl; di }

separately to provide the fuil docyifigng with the new’

Yours sincerely

Eddie Fry
Chairpsrs:

Office of the Chalrperson + PO Box 586, Curtin ACT 2605 - .
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Petty, Barry

From: Bator, Leo

Sent: Thursday, 21 January 2016 12:156 PM

To: Lisa Gay, Tanya Hosch; Bruce Maitin; Anthony Ashby; Trish Crossin: Alison Page
Co: Eddie Fry {ILC); Gumley, Kate

Subject: ILC Annual Report 2014-156

Attachments: JLC annual report [etter to Min Scutlion providing additional foreword Ipb .doox; Fry

statement 14-15 ARIpb.docx

Dear Board members

The Chair has asked me to forward the two attachments for your consideration. The attachments relate to your

recent teleconference {meeting number 197} where the 1LC’s Annual Report was discussed. The majority of
members supported the inclusion of a socond foreword comprising of a letter from the new Chair. The matter has
been discussed with the Minister's Office and while this is not their preferred approach, they consider this an

adequate solution.

to the Minister advising that the new Board has authorised him

To proceed with this, [ attach a letter from the Chair
w Board will work with

to Include a statement from the Chair, The statement (see attached) articulates how the he
the Australian Government to deliver better outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait tsiander pecplesin

accordance with the ILC’s legislative purpose,

tent with the those expresséd at the meeting the Chair intends on

Subject to your views that this approach is consis
by COB tomorrow (22 fanuary 2016). Accordingly, 1 would

sending the letter and Statement to the Minister
appreciate your response by midday tomorrow {22 January 2016}

Kind regards
Leoh.

Leo Bator | Acting Chief Executive Officer | !ndigeno&s Land Corporation
(1) 02 6269 2500(|Redacted s || (F) 02 6285 4300 [ PO Box 586, Curtin AGT 2605

wwe ffe.gov.au ATF

A j Austenhion Governuond
A5 tadipennus Land Corprration

ut Australia and their continuing connection to land,

I.C acknowledges the Traditional Owners of Country througho
ders hoth past and present.

sea and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to the El







22 January 2015

Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion MP
Minister for Indigenous Affairs

PO Box 6100

Senate

Parliament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Dear Minister

| refer to the letter of transmission dated 21 September 2015 and advise an inclusion to the Indigenous

Land Corporation {iLC) 2014-15 Annual Report,

lude a statement from me as the new Chair. The
lian Government to deliver better
h our legiskative purpose.

The new Board of the ILC has authorised me to inc
statement articulates how the new Board will work with the Austra

outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait |slander peoples in accordance wit

The annual report, with the inclusion of my statement, is provided herewith.

Yours sincerely

Eddie Fry
Chairperson







Australian Government

Indigenous Land Coxrpoxation

~ Statement by Chairperson, Mr Eddie Fry

The Indigenous Land Carporation {ILC) was set up In 1995 to provide land-related benefits to
Indigenous Australians. This report provides ample evidence of the achievements of the iLC's
fand acquisition and land management programs and of its three subsidiaries, Voyages
Indigenous Tourism Australia, Natlonal Indigenous Pastoral Enterprises {NIPE} and the National
Centre of Indigenous Excellence over the 2014-15 financial year.

The ILC Board appointed in October 2015 wilf be meeting in February 2016 for an in-depth
discussion of our strategic priorities and vision for the future; we will be setting our approach
to delivering the (LC's functions in an environment where demands on ILC services are
increasing, the Indigenous population is growing and an agricultural boom is on our doorstep.

the

We have already. established the basis of a new, open and productive relationship with
) to

Australian Government and will be providing strong support {within our leglslative remit
Government policy priorities,

We also need to work with Government to forge a common approach to two particular fssiies
of concern to the Board. '

The first Is refinancing, in the first half of 2016, a substa ntial part of the debt incurred through
the ILC's purchase of Ayers Rock Resott. We are seeking an option that minimises the ILC's
interest-payment obligations, so the ILC has more resources for its programs and to support
the outstanding indigenous employment outcomes at the resort. The acquisition of the Ayers
~ Rock Resort added a significant asset to the Indigenous estate and on country that has
profound [ndigenous connections. The Incoming Board: has taken a decision not to pursue any
further investigation into the original purchase of the resort, and will be guided by the findings

of reviews already undertaken.

A second major concern for Directors Is that returns from the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Land Account, whose revenues fund the [.C's operations, are generally inadequate to
meet the demands being made on the corporation. Indeed, the legislated requirement to
provide a minimum level of annual funding to the ILC could see the Land Account’s capital
balance decrease based on current returns from the allowable investments of the Land
Account. Meanwhile, the indigenous population is growing at an estimated 2.3 per cent per
annum, and the indigenous estate Is expanding—It covers around 40 per cent of the Australian
land mass according to the December 2015 Report to COAG on Indigenous Land Administration
and Use. 1 look forward to discussing with the Minister for Indigenous Affairs and the Minister

for Finance a strategic approach to achieving a higher rate of return from the Land Account,

benchmarked to returns achieved by the Future Fund.

Increases in revenue to the ILC, both from the tand Account and from our three subsidiaties,
la in supporting the Government’s

are essential given the Board’s desire to play & greater ro
indigenous and hroader policy agendas. The ILC already delivers strongly on the Government’s




Closing the Gap pnonty of ‘getting adults into work’; it is a major provider of training-to-
employment programs, especially in remote Australia, and around one third of total ILC staff

are indigenous people.

Tha Government is prioritising the development of northern Australia where ILC subsidiary
NIPE operates an extensive cattle business across 13 properties. The White Paper on
Developing Northern Australia, released in June 2015, highlights ihe opportunitles available to
such agribusinesses, given northern Australia’s proximity to growing Asian matkets. Through
its commitment to expand NIPE, the ILC is seeking to build the Indigenous presence in the
northern cattle industry giving Indigenous interests greater commercial strength and influence.

The White Paper recognises that achieving better economic outcomes on Indigenous land is
essential to northern development, in light of the extent of Indigenous land ownership across a
complex array of titles. The 1LC Board will go on mobilising the corporation’s considerable
expertise in fostering economic development on Indigenous-held land, recognising that
economlic benefits are most effectively realised when the other benefits specified In our
legislation—environmental, soclal and cultural—are also realised, As the ILC has
demonstrated, Indigenous owners in remote Australia are well placed to earn income from
unconventional and innovative sources, including ecosystem services, carbon farming and

potentially in the future water management.

| am very excited by the prospects | sea for the ILC, working in tandem with the other
Australian Government agency that | chair, Indigenous Business Australia {IBA). I am
committed to building and leveraging the two agencies’ combined asset base for the benefit of

Indigenous Australians and of Australia as a whole.

As Chair of the ILC | will work as | have with IBA—to increase the ILC's impact, influence,
effectiveness and reach. | am keenly aware of the challenges of Closing the Gap and of the
scale of the resources needed to make progress for Indigenous Australians. | believe the ILC
and 1BA need to embrace a business model based on growth, commercial sustainability and
collaboration across the Australian community (including mobilising greater private-sector

interest and Investment).

The new ILC will have a future focus; it will deliver more, engage more fully and be an

exemplar of best practice and process across Its various activities.\We-wilHears-from- the-past
MW%%M@WWMHMM@
platform-for-political-prandstanding: We will work constructively with Governoment to ensure

the {LC delivers the best possible outcomes as Indigenous people across Australia depend on
- what we do, and how well we do it.

Eddie Fry'
Chairperson

January 2016




